
 

 

  

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 28, 2024 AT 2:00 P.M. 

OKANAGAN LAKE ROOM (COUNCIL CHAMBER) 

A G E N D A 
 

 
a) ORDER 

 
b) LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  

As Councillor of the City of Vernon, and in the spirit of this gathering, I recognize 
the City of Vernon is located in the traditional territory of the Syilx people of the 
Okanagan nation. 

c) ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
d) ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

April 24, 2023 Regular (Attached) (P. 3) 

e) UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a) Council Discretionary Grant – Recipient Reporting (attached) (P. 5) 

f) NEW BUSINESS 

a) Council Discretionary Grant Applications – April 2024 Intake  
 Application Overview (P. 27) 
 Council Discretionary Policy (P. 33) 
 Applications 

 APPLICANT 
AMOUNT 

REQUESTED 
PAGE 

# 

1. Archway Society for Domestic Peace $10,000 P. 38 

2. Caetani Cultural Centre Society $12,500 P. 68 

3. Family Resource Centre for North Okanagan  $3,800 P. 94 

4. Kalamalka Starfish Society $12,000 P. 116 

5. North Okanagan Pipes and Drums $5,000 P. 132 

6. North Okanagan Valley Gleaners Society $6,750 P. 150 
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7. North Okanagan Valley Orchestra Society $1,000 P. 169 

8. Okanagan Screen Arts Society $2,715 P. 181 

9. School District No.22 $10,000 P. 197 

10. 
The Good Food Box Society of the North 
Okanagan 

$13,200 P. 254 

11. Turning Points Collaborative Society $15,000 P. 263 

12. Vernon Community Band Society $400 P. 333 

13. Vernon Kokanee Swim Club $1,635 P. 345 

14. Vernon Paddling Centre Society $9,500 P. 355 

15. WL Seaton Secondary “Sonics” Football $20,000 P. 369 

 
g) INFORMATION ITEMS 

h) DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting is tentatively scheduled for November 2024; location, time and 
date to be determined. 
 

i) ADJOURNMENT 
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VERNON 

MINUTES OF THE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

HELD APRIL 24, 2024 AT 1:30 PM 

OKANAGAN LAKE ROOM (COUNCIL CHAMBERS) 

 

ORDER 

PRESENT:  Councillor Gares 
  Councillor Quiring 
  Councillor Mund, Chair 
   

ABSENT:  Councillor Fehr 
   

STAFF:  Rena Crosson, Manager, Financial Operations 
Elma Hamming, Director, Financial Services 
Laura Medcalf, Revenue Supervisor 
Jennifer Pounder, Records/Committee Clerk 
 
The meeting was called to order at 1:37 p.m. 
 

LAND 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT  

As Councillor of the City of Vernon, and in the spirit of this gathering, I 
recognize the City of Vernon is located in the traditional territory of the 
Syilx people of the Okanagan Nation. 
 

ADOPTION OF THE 
AGENDA 

Moved by Councillor Fares, seconded by Councillor Quiring:  
 

THAT the agenda of the April 24, 2024 Finance Committee 
meeting be adopted: 

 
CARRIED 

 
 

ADOPTION OF THE 
MINUTES 

Moved by Councillor Gares, seconded by Councillor Mund:  
 

THAT the minutes of the November 16, 2023 Finance 
Committee meeting be adopted: 
 
CARRIED 

 
 

 UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
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FINANCE COMMITTEE  APRIL 24, 2024 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 

PERMISSIVE TAX 
EXEMPTION POLICY 
CHANGE 

The Manager, Financial Operations presented the Committee with the  
draft Permissive Tax Exemption Policy and the following was noted: 
 
 Standardized wording used to remove the specific dates of each 

bylaw period and advertising period. 
 Places of worship, private schools and hospital ancillary 

properties will be administered on a five-year bylaw cycle. 
 The phase-in period has been removed from the policy. 
 Two separate application forms will be available, but are not 

necessary for Policy inclusion. 
 
 

 Moved by Councillor Gares, seconded by Councillor Quiring: 
 

THAT the Finance Committee recommends that Council rescind 
the current “Tax Exemption – Permissive” policy, 
 
AND FURTHER, the Finance Committee recommends that 
Council adopt the new “Permissive Tax Exemption Policy”. 
 
CARRIED. 
 

  
 INFORMATION ITEMS: 
  
NEXT MEETING The next meeting for the Finance Committee is set for May 28, 2024 at 

2:00 p.m. 
 

MOTION TO ADJOURN Moved by Councillor Gares, seconded by Councillor Quiring:  
 

THAT the meeting of the Finance Committee be adjourned. 
 
CARRIED 

 
ADJOURNMENT  The meeting of the Finance Committee adjourned at 1:45 p.m. 

 
 CERTIFIED CORRECT: 
  

 
 
_______________________ Chair 
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VERNON 

M E M O R A N D U M 

TO: Finance Committee FILE: 1850-01 

 

PC: Elma Hamming, Director, Financial Services DATE: May 22, 2024 

 

FROM: Rena Crosson, Manager, Financial Operations 

 

SUBJECT: COUNCIL DISCRETIONARY GRANT – RECIPIENT REPORTING 

 
The Council Discretionary Grant Policy states organizations that have received a 
discretionary grant must submit a report to the City within two years of receipt disclosing 
details on how the grant funds were spent. 
 
From the April 2022 grants issued, we have received reporting for the following: 

 Archway Society for Domestic Peace - $10,000 
 Family Resource Centre - $4,000 
 Kalamalka Highlander Pipe Band - $5,000 
 North Valley Gymnastics - $10,000 
 Sovereign Lake Nordic Club - $6,250 
 Vernon & District Funtastic Sports Society - $15,000 
 Vernon Community Band Society - $800 
 Vernon Community Music School - $1,200 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
THAT Finance Committee receive the recipient reports as provided in the memorandum 
dated May 22, 2024 from the Manager, Financial Operations. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
Rena Crosson, CPA, CGA  
Manager, Financial Operations 
 
 
 
Enclosed:  
April 2022 Grant Recipient List 
Archway Society for Domestic Peace letter 
Family Resource Centre letter 

FC Meeting - May 28, 2024 Page 5 of 375



Kalamalka Highlander Pipe Band letter 
North Valley Gymnastics letter 
Sovereign Lake Nordic Club letter 
Vernon & District Funtastic Sports Society letter 
Vernon Community Band Society email 
Vernon Community Music School letter 
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Organization Organization Overview Type of Request Purpose of Grant
Amount 

Requested

Amount 

Approved
Contact Info

Recipient Report 

Received
Follow Up Action

Council Discretionary Grant Applications - April 2022 Intake

Archway Society for 

Domestic Peace

They provide a wide range of 

supportive services for survivors of 

domestic and sexual violence 

through safe shelter, counselling, 

child and youth advocacy, outreach 

service etc.

Project Funding

The current office space is cramped and not 

optimally functional. Request to renovate 

the space to create one additional office that 

will more effectively utilize the existing 

space.

 $             10,000  $               10,000   2023-12-06

Family Resource 

Centre

They provide affordable mental 

health care to families, individuals, 

children and couple. Including 

trauma care for those who are 

victims of abuse or assault.

Program Funding

Request to expand the Refugee and 

Immigrant Outreach program to allow us to 

provide service to additional refugees we 

expect to see from the Ukraine. Specifically, 

adding a second weekly newcomer women's 

group and providing extra support hours.

 $               4,000  $                 4,000 2024-04-04

Kalamalka Highlander 

Pipe Band (KHPB)

Encourage highland bagpipe and its 

music and promote the Local Scottish 

Culture.

Project Funding

To replace the sporans, sporan chains, kilt 

pins, cap badges, hose and glens for all 20 

members and assist in outfitting new 

members.

 $               5,000  $                 5,000  kalpipeband@hotmail.com 2024-04-24

North Valley 

Gymnastics 

They provide Artistic Gymnastics that 

help children develop their mental 

focus, balance, coordination, upper 

body strength, flexibility and 

endurance.

Capital 

Expenditure

Main area of need is for equipment. 

Secondary need is for costs associated with 

moving into a new space. Our content 

insurance from Oct 2021 fire is over 

$100,000 short of actual inventory list.

 $             10,000  $               10,000  info@nvgym.com 2024-02-22

Sovereign Lake Nordic 

Club (SLNC)

SLNC operates a cross-country ski 

venue for recreation, social and 

economic benefit. The services 

include ski lesson, programs, low-

cost program for local schools, 

racing, a ski academy etc.

Project Funding

To fund an economic impact study to 

determine the benefits of SLNC current 

operations including hosting  of events, new 

lodge construction project, the added 

benefit that the new lodge will provide for 

the club.

 $               6,250  $                 6,250 2024-02-22

Vernon & District 

Funtastic Sports 

Society

They host an annual slo pitch and 

music festival on Canada day long 

weekend every year. The event and 

tournament is held at DND Army 

Camp.

Project Funding

Encountered substantial increases in 

services and products (fencing, security, 

field rentals). Event is showing an almost 

$50,000 loss. Grant funds towards 

operations of the event by purchasing items 

such as fencing to eliminate the need to rent 

in the future.

 $             15,000  $               15,000  office@funtastic.org 2024-04-15

Vernon Community 

Band Society

They provide music for all ages and 

perform at events such as 

Remembrance Day ceremonies, 

Winter Carnival and for fundraisers 

etc.

Program Funding
To cover some operating expenses that 

allow the band to practice and perform.
 $                  800  $                    800 2024-02-09

Vernon Community 

Music School

Music school that offer wide variety 

of private and group instruction that 

teaches musical instruments like 

violin, cello, piano, guitar, harp, voice 

and more.

Project Funding

To purchase a PA system complete with two 

speaker stands, to be used for all indoor 

student performances, scholarship recital 

and outdoor concerts.

 $               1,200  $                 1,200  vcms@shaw.ca 2024-02-08

 $               52,250 

Grant Recipient Tracking 
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2400-46 Avenue  
Vernon BC V1T 9N5 
(250) 558-3850 
 
archwaysociety.ca 

TRANSITIONING TO A FUTURE FREE FROM VIOLENCE 

 

 
 
 
December 6, 2023 
 
With gratitude we submit our report on the City of Vernon Council Discretionary Grant funds 
received by Archway Society for Domestic Peace. 
 
Archway Society provides wrap around support to women, children and youth survivors of 
domestic violence and sexual assault in the North Okanagan.  Archway currently has 17 programs, 
in 6 locations.  The funds were used for the Community Based Victim Services (CBVS) Program.  This 
program is located in office space that was in poor condition, cramped and not optimally functional.   
 
With the Council Discretionary funds we renovated the office space.  This included: 

 New carpeting as the old carpet was +20 years old, had several areas that were lifting and posed 
a tripping hazard and was very dirty 

 Painted the offices 

 Replaced the baseboards 

 Bought used furniture that was in great condition 

 Added some artwork from local First Nations artist David Wilson 

 Installed a wall mounted rack system for our printed materials and resources for clients 

 Created one additional office using privacy panels that help use the space more effectively  
 
This renovation was particularly important since in 2023 we were the successful applicant for a 
Sexual Assault Services Program, funded by The Ministry of Public Safety and Solicitor General.  This 
increased our need for space so having the additional office was invaluable. 
 
Community Based Victim Services and the Sexual Assault Services Program provide support to 
people who are going through what is likely one of the most difficult times in their lives.  It fills us 
with gratitude that they can now provide that support in surroundings that are comfortable, secure, 
confidential and professional.   
 
Sincerely, 

 
 

Co-Executive Director 

City of Vernon     $10,000 Renovation Grant 
Council Discretionary Grant   Received June 10, 2022 
Recipient Reporting 
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Vernon City Council Discrefionary Grant
Awarded April 2022

Report on Grant Usage and Outcomes

Grant Descripfion (from Applicafion)

The grant would be used to expand our Refugee and Immigrant Outreach (RIO) Program to allow us to 
provide service to addifional refugees we expect to see from the Ukraine over the coming year. 
Specifically, we will be adding a second weekly Newcomer Women’s Group and providing extra support 
worker hours on-site at VDICSS to meet with refugees and direct refugees suffering trauma to 
appropriate mental health services in Vernon.

Use of Funding

We added a second Newcomer Women’s Group as planned. This allowed us to befter meet the 
increased number of women we were seeing from Ukraine. At the high point of immigrafion from 
Ukraine one third to one half of the weekly parficipants in our two women’s groups were from the 
Ukraine.

Community Benefits

Our program saw approximately 18 – 20 immigrant and refugee women a week over the course of the 
year funded. Our extra group allowed us to see serve more newcomer women, to provide more opfions 
to meet their schedules, and to provide a lower parficipant-to-facilitator rafio to the women we saw. This 
had the addifional benefit of establishing connecfions that led to support work with women from 
Ukraine and ability to connect them to mental health services in Vernon where appropriate.

Date: April 4, 2024
Prepared by:

Execufive Director
Family Resource Centre Society for the North Okanagan
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February 22, 2024 

Financial Services 

City of Vernon 

City Hall, 3400 - 30 ST 

Vernon, BC V1T 5E6 

Re: 2022 Council Discretionary Grant to Sovereign Lake Nordic Club 

To Whom It May Concern: 

This report is provided on behalf of the Sovereign Lake Nordic Club (SLNC), in regard to a Council 
Discretionary Grant of $6,250.00 awarded to SLNC on May 30, 2022.  

In June, 2022, SLNC entered into a contract with Lions Gate Consulting Inc. to develop a “Complete 
Economic Assessment of SLNC’s Operations and the Planned New Lodge Project.” The total cost of the 
project was $6,300.00 plus GST. A draft report was provided to SLNC in August, 2022, following which 
some revisions and additions were made to the report, and a final report was received on September 
14, 2022. On the same day Lions Gate Consulting invoiced SLNC for $6,615.00, being the full amount of 
the original quote. SLNC was fully satisfied with this report, which clearly described the economic impact 
the Club has on the local community. 
 
In May, 2023 the SLNC Lodge Renewal Committee asked Lions Gate Consulting to expand and update 
the report with additional data we were able to provide. An updated report was developed and received 
by SLNC in November, 2023. This update cost $2,929.50 and was paid entirely by SLNC.  
 
A copy of the final report from Lions Gate Consulting is attached, and all documentation regarding price 
quotations and invoices are available upon request. 
 
Once again, we would like to thank the City of Vernon for its support of the Sovereign Lake Lodge 
Renewal Project. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 

 
Sovereign Lake Nordic Club 
Lodge Renewal Program 
 

Box 1231 

Vernon, BC V1T 6N6 
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Rajvir Randhawa

From: office@funtastic.org
Sent: Monday, April 15, 2024 2:16 PM
To: Rajvir Randhawa
Subject: RE: City of Vernon Council Discretionary Grant
Attachments: fence 1.JPG; fence 2.JPG

Use Caution - External Email  
Rajvir, 
 
Thanks to the City of Vernon Council Discretionary grant, the Funtastic Sports Society was able to purchase 4’ and 6’ 
fencing to assist in required layout of the Funtastic Slo Pitch and Music Festival.  This saves Funtastic an average of 
$3,500 per year due to not having to rent.   
Funtastic has the ability to help other non profit organizations by way of lending out the fencing.  To date, the IPE have 
utilized the fencing, as well the Esso Cup will be utilizing it, plus we have had numerous inquiries from other sports 
groups as well.  
 
The Funtastic Sports Society is appreciative to the City of Vernon Council for selecting us to be a recipient of the grant.  
 
 

 
Executive Manager 
Funtastic Sports Society 

 
 

From: Rajvir Randhawa <RRandhawa@vernon.ca>  
Sent: March 25, 2024 9:41 AM 
To: office@funtastic.org 
Subject: RE: City of Vernon Council Discretionary Grant 
 
Hello Diana, 
I am following up to my previous email. We require a letter/report to be compliant with the grant. If possible, please 
send your letter by April with details on the grant. 
 
Thank you, 
Rajvir Randhawa BBA (she/her) 
Coordinator, Financial Services 
City Hall, 3400 - 30 ST, Vernon, BC V1T 5E6 
Office: 250.550.3560 | Email:rrandhawa@vernon.ca | www.vernon.ca 
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From: Rajvir Randhawa  
Sent: Thursday, February 8, 2024 10:13 AM 
To: 'office@funtastic.org' <office@funtastic.org> 
Subject: City of Vernon Council Discretionary Grant 
 

Hello,  

In reference to the City of Vernon Council Discretionary Grant your organization received in April, 2022, this letter is a 
reminder the reporting requirements associated with the grant award. ($15,000) 

As per the Discretionary Grant Policy, grant recipients must submit a report to the City within two years of receipt 
disclosing details on how the grant funds were spent.  

If none of the grant funds were spent, the grant must be returned to the City of Vernon within two years of receipt. If the 
report requirement is not followed by an organization receiving a discretionary grant, subsequent applications from that 
organization will not be approved.  

Please email with details on how the grant funds were spent by email to Financial Services at cfo@vernon.ca or deliver to 
City Hall, 3500 30 Street, Vernon, BC, V1T 5E6. 

If you have any questions, please contact Financial Services at 250-550-3560. We hope to receive responses in a timely 
manner. 

Kind regards,  

Rajvir Randhawa BBA (she/her) 
Coordinator, Financial Services 
City Hall, 3400 - 30 ST, Vernon, BC V1T 5E6 
Office: 250.550.3560 | Email:rrandhawa@vernon.ca | www.vernon.ca 

  
 
City of Vernon Disclaimer: This transmission (including any attachments) may contain confidential information, 
privileged material (including material protected by the FOI act or other applicable privileges), or constitute non-public 
information. Any use of this information by anyone other than the intended recipient is prohibited. If you have received 
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this transmission in error, please immediately reply to the sender and delete this information from your system. Use, 
dissemination, distribution, or reproduction of this transmission by unintended recipients is not authorized and may be 
unlawful.  
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Rajvir Randhawa

From:
Sent: Friday, February 9, 2024 12:17 PM
To: CFO
Subject: Re: City of Vernon Council Discretionary Grant

Use Caution - External Email  
Good afternoon Deborah,   
 
I'm writing on behalf of the Vernon Concert Band Society - we received a Council Discretionary Grant in 2022 (I believe). 
I wanted to report back that the funding was spent in full on the following items: 
- Insurance (total cost was $2587.00) 
- Conductor honorarium (total cost was $2963.00) 
 
Does this suffice? Is there a reporting form?  
 
Thanks very much! 
 

 
VCB President  
 
 
 
---------- Forwarded message --------- 
From: Rajvir Randhawa <RRandhawa@vernon.ca> 
Date: Thu, Feb 8, 2024 at 10:12 AM 
Subject: City of Vernon Council Discretionary Grant 
To: > 
 

Hello,  

In reference to the City of Vernon Council Discretionary Grant your organization received in April, 2022, this letter is a 
reminder the reporting requirements associated with the grant award. ($800) 

As per the Discretionary Grant Policy, grant recipients must submit a report to the City within two years of receipt 
disclosing details on how the grant funds were spent.  

If none of the grant funds were spent, the grant must be returned to the City of Vernon within two years of receipt. If 
the report requirement is not followed by an organization receiving a discretionary grant, subsequent applications from 
that organization will not be approved.  

Please email with details on how the grant funds were spent by email to Financial Services at cfo@vernon.ca or deliver 
to City Hall, 3500 30 Street, Vernon, BC, V1T 5E6. 

If you have any questions, please contact Financial Services at 250-550-3560. We hope to receive responses 

Kind regards,  
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Rajvir Randhawa BBA (she/her) 

Coordinator, Financial Services 

City Hall, 3400 - 30 ST, Vernon, BC V1T 5E6 

Office: 250.550.3560 | Email:rrandhawa@vernon.ca | www.vernon.ca 

  

  

City of Vernon Disclaimer: This transmission (including any attachments) may contain confidential information, 
privileged material (including material protected by the FOI act or other applicable privileges), or constitute non-public 
information. Any use of this information by anyone other than the intended recipient is prohibited. If you have received 
this transmission in error, please immediately reply to the sender and delete this information from your system. Use, 
dissemination, distribution, or reproduction of this transmission by unintended recipients is not authorized and may be 
unlawful.  
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In 2022, the Vernon Community Music 

School was granted $1,200 from the City of 

Vernon Discretionary Grant

to go towards the purchase of a new sound system complete with two speaker stands, to be used for all indoor student 

performances, the scholarship recital, the end of year outdoor Country Fair, as well as outdoor concerts. The original system we 

had was purchased in the 1990s, was outdated, and worked intermittently. Thanks to the generous grant donation from the City of 

Vernon, the Vernon Community Music School was able to purchase a new sound system that covers 1800 sq feet of space, is user 

friendly for all of our faculty members, and is more adequate for our outdoor spaces. 

The new sound system is a great success for our students. They work hard on their pieces for a chance to perform in front of an 

audience, and as people connect with each other again through music, the audience levels are growing. We are so grateful to the 

City of Vernon for their generous contribution, as our music levels increase for all members of our community to enjoy.

Below are photos of events that have used the new equipment, and have been widely successful because of the accessibility to 

sound. The equipment has also been used for our new project, the Swan Lake Market student gigs, in collaboration with the Swan 

Lake Market and Garden Centre.

Upgraded PA System | June 30, 2022
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Part of our responsibility as the Community Music School is to provide students the opportunity and 

equipment necessary to perform their musical pieces at live events. This gives them the experience of performing in front of an 

audience, which is necessary for those wanting to continue their studies as professional artists. Part of our responsibility to the 

community of Vernon is to purchase products locally, to contribute to the local economy. We have completed both responsibilities, 

as our new sound system was purchased from locally owned and operated Wentworth Music, keeping money in our community 

and our students have the equipment necessary to be successful.

Thank you, once again, to the City of Vernon for supporting the arts and culture in our community. You are all invited to attend 

our annual year-end Country Fair, happening on Friday, June 7th, 2024. Immerse yourselves in our music community and enjoy the 

sights and sounds of our students performing pieces they have been working on for much of the school year, as well as the 

renowned Cake Walk, Pie Tent, and family games. Join us!

www.vernoncommunitymusicschool.com | 250-545-4977 | vcms@shaw.ca
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Count Organization Organization Overview Type of Request Purpose of Grant Financials Minutes
Amount 

Requested
Comments

Tax Exemption for 

2024

Approved 

2023 Grants

1
Archway Society for 

Domestic Peace

To support women, children, and families to live a 

life with dignity and respect, free from domestic 

and sexual violence or abuse. They provide wide 

range of services like shelters, counseling, child 

and youth advocacy, outreach services and 

collaborative community projects

Program funding

new equipment for recording and sound equipment for 

forensic interviews and Multi-Disciplinary team (MDT) 

during investigations. Their current recording is almost 

10 years old and needs to be replaced. Yes Yes $10,000 $6,000

2
Caetani Cultural 

Centre Society

They are a culture facility centered around a 

regionally designated heritage home, artist 

studios, gallery and exhibition spaces all located 

on a 1.3 acre property in Vernon. They offer 

culture programming, events and festivals. Its 

rooted and inspired by legacy of Sveva Caetani 

and her family history to inspire people and ignite 

the power of art.

Program funding

to help fund expenses of:

Heritage assessment - $2,655

Statement of Significance - $1,875

Heritage Conservation Plan - $12,900

Project management - $3,500

Total = $20,930

Yes No $12,500

3

Family Resource 

Centre for North 

Okanagan

Their purpose is to empower individual, children, 

and families. They are dedicated to provide 

affordable counselling and support programs. 

They provide one-on-one counselling, phycho-

educational workshops, support groups, peer 

drop-in groups and outreach programs to the 

community.

Program funding

To fund and attend local events.

Table, tent, chairs, retractable banner, staff t-shirts - 

$1,500 

Upgrade materials to hand out - $300

Wages for staffing tables - $2,000
Yes Yes $3,800 $4,200

4
Kalamalka Starfish 

Society

A program that helps support student and 

families by providing food during the week and 

weekends. The program helps relieve food 

insecurity for children and the stress.

Program funding

To buy groceries. There are roughly 250 students and it 

cost $6k to cover one week of groceries and $12k for two 

weeks. Food costs are 92% of the Program cost.
Yes Yes $12,000

11 of the 20 schools supported 

are in the City of Vernon (76% 

of the bags provided each 

week)

5
North Okanagan 

Pipes and Drums

Pipe Band that wants to pass their passion on to 

younger generation of the Scottish culture. They 

provide music and entertainment for large 

number of organizations throughout the year in 

the community. Those communities are the 

senior residences, Winter Carnival, etc.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

Program funding

New uniforms to build confidence and look good when 

representing the City.
2024 

Transactional 

activity 

provided only.  

No balance 

sheet or 

income 

statement

Yes $5,000

6

North Okanagan 

Valley Gleaners 

Society

Volunteer based charity operating in Vernon to 

assist those in need locally and around the word. 

They sell donated furniture at discount prices to 

local residents and work with local social service 

agencies to provide furniture free of change to 

those in need in the community. This reduces 

waste and creates affordable furniture to 

residents.

Project funding

to purchase a professional quality commercial grade 

upholstery cleaner/steamer/vacuum.

Yes Yes $6,750
20% Permissive 

Tax Exemption

Council Discretionary Grant Applications - April 2024 Intake
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Count Organization Organization Overview Type of Request Purpose of Grant Financials Minutes
Amount 

Requested
Comments

Tax Exemption for 

2024

Approved 

2023 Grants

7

North Okanagan 

Valley Orchestra 

Society

Newly formed orchestra based in Vernon that put 

on public concerts and to seniors in care homes 

at no cost (donations accepted).

Program funding

to rent rehearsal space and contribute to the honorarium 

to the conductor. Yes Yes $1,000

8
Okanagan Screen Arts 

Society

They operate the Vernon Towne Theatre and host 

and curate daily arts and culture events at The 

Towne Theatre. Their goal is to diversify the 

theatre.

Program funding

to pay staff members 3 hrs per week to operate  weekly 

daytime matinee programming for seniors and adults. 
Yes Yes $2,715

9 School District No.22

SD22 serves over 9k students and the mission is 

to inspire and nurture students to thrive in their 

learning, relationship, and community. With new 

Provincial of K-12 Anti-Action Plan, SD22 

collaborated with local organization to produce 

"Voices of Vernon Cafe" as an approach to create 

dialogue about racism, discrimination, and 

prejudice. This will provide students to listen, 

learn and share in stories and encourage 

intercultural understanding.

Project funding

To fund Voices of Vernon World Café:

-Honorarium for facilitators $1200

-Refreshments and Lunch $1000

-Bussing for Students $1000

-Art and project supplies/phot printing $1000

-Volunteer coordination $1050

-Venue rental (ORL) $850

-Art project development (Vernon Public Art Gallery) 

$1000

Yes Yes $10,000 No evidence of financial need
Provincially 

Exempt

10

The Good Food Box 

Society of the North 

Okanagan

They provide affordable produce from the region 

through community partnerships. They are a 

volunteer-run community program that promotes 

healthy eating with locally grown food to all 

members of the community in an economical and 

accessible way, regardless of income. Members 

purchase a box a  month (at reduced cost).

Program funding

to support 40 families in Prenatal Program for 3 months - 

$2,400

to support 15 young families in the First Nations 

Friendship centre for 12 months - $3,600

to support 15 seniors for 12 months - $3,600

to support 15 families by social agencies for 12 months - 

$3,600

Income 

statement 

provided.  No 

balance 

sheet.

Yes $13,200

11
Turning Points 

Collaborative Society

The mission is to achieve safe and sustainable 

housing in the community and to provide a 

continuum of housing, addiction recovery, 

employment services, outreach and to promote 

overall health. They offer over 10 programs and 

manage 29 sites.

Program funding

Admin system - $1714.93

Subscription fee (for year and current fiscal year) - 

$10,331.94

25 additional hours for Support (ShareVision) until July 

31, 2026 for after consultants are no longer with them - 

$2953.13

Yes Yes $15,000

12
Vernon Community 

Band Society

They are Vernon's only community concert band. 

They welcomes all ages and perform at numerous 

Vernon events for the enjoyment of the entire 

city. The music is an opportunity to socialize and 

boost health, emotionally and physically.

Program funding

Use towards operation expenses to be able to practice 

and perform. This includes rental fee at WL Seaton 

School, liability insurance, transportation costs, and 

Honorarium to the conductor.
Yes Yes $400

13
Vernon Kokanee 

Swim Club (VKSC)

Competitive swim club that fosters skill, 

endurance, self-esteem and respect for 

competition to reach simmers "personal best".

Project funding

the use of Creekside Conference Centre and the 

Dogwood Gym for three days, June 21-23, for 2024 

Summer Divisionals. (Amount requested depends on the 

fee for 3 days as they are requesting the City only for the 

free use or technically however much it would cost to get 

that access, not an exact amount to be awarded). 

Yes Yes $1,635
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Count Organization Organization Overview Type of Request Purpose of Grant Financials Minutes
Amount 

Requested
Comments

Tax Exemption for 

2024

Approved 

2023 Grants

14
Vernon Paddling 

Centre Society

Their mission if to promote safe and inclusive 

paddling program to Vernon and surrounding 

areas. The Society educates the community about 

safety on the water and proper stroke technique 

to reduce injury and increase enjoyment. They 

offer various levels of paddling activities.

Program funding

Replacing existing VPC signage at the entrance of 

Paddlewheel Park - $1500

Vernon Paddling Centre and Vernon Adaptive Paddling 

Signage on the existing structure at the paddling 

compound - $1500

Porta Potty Rental (Apr-Sep) that’s wheel chair accessible 

- $1500

Funds to Support Coaching for Vernon Adaptive Paddling - 

$5000

Yes Yes $9,500

15
WL Seaton Secondary 

"Sonics" Football

 Brand new program start of April 2024. They are 

a Junior Varsity Highschool Football program that 

focus on development of healthy athletes who 

strive for success with integrity and 

determination. The program prioritizes character 

building and leadership and the values team 

work, discipline and respect to be role models in 

the community. Currently 23 students registered 

from Seaton and another 16 from Kalamalka.

Program funding

To purchase protective and training equipment for the 

program: 

-Helmet that have 5-star safety rating with TPU 

cushioning

-shoulder, high, thigh, and knee pads

-field equipment; tackling bag/dummies, blocking 

shields/sleds and tackling wheels

-footballs, kicking tees, uniforms, training aids like cones, 

ladders and medicine balls

(quote attached also)

No 
No (they are 

new)
$20,000

New organization so a budget 

and list of directors is what 

was provided (as per our 

policy).

The student registration covers 

both Seaton and Kalamalka 

high schools.

TOTAL REQUESTED 15  $     123,500 

TOTAL APPROVED

TOTAL FUNDING AVAILABLE  $     100,000 
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Amount 

Requested
Comments

Tax Exemption for 

2024

Approved 

2023 Grants

1
Archway Society for 

Domestic Peace

To support women, children, and families to live a 

life with dignity and respect, free from domestic 

and sexual violence or abuse. They provide wide 

range of services like shelters, counseling, child 

and youth advocacy, outreach services and 

collaborative community projects

Program funding

new equipment for recording and sound equipment for 

forensic interviews and Multi-Disciplinary team (MDT) 

during investigations. Their current recording is almost 

10 years old and needs to be replaced. Yes Yes $10,000 $6,000

2
Caetani Cultural 

Centre Society

They are a culture facility centered around a 

regionally designated heritage home, artist 

studios, gallery and exhibition spaces all located 

on a 1.3 acre property in Vernon. They offer 

culture programming, events and festivals. Its 

rooted and inspired by legacy of Sveva Caetani 

and her family history to inspire people and ignite 

the power of art.

Program funding

to help fund expenses of:

Heritage assessment - $2,655

Statement of Significance - $1,875

Heritage Conservation Plan - $12,900

Project management - $3,500

Total = $20,930

Yes No $12,500

3

Family Resource 

Centre for North 

Okanagan

Their purpose is to empower individual, children, 

and families. They are dedicated to provide 

affordable counselling and support programs. 

They provide one-on-one counselling, phycho-

educational workshops, support groups, peer 

drop-in groups and outreach programs to the 

community.

Program funding

To fund and attend local events.

Table, tent, chairs, retractable banner, staff t-shirts - 

$1,500 

Upgrade materials to hand out - $300

Wages for staffing tables - $2,000
Yes Yes $3,800 $4,200

4
Kalamalka Starfish 

Society

A program that helps support student and 

families by providing food during the week and 

weekends. The program helps relieve food 

insecurity for children and the stress.

Program funding

To buy groceries. There are roughly 250 students and it 

cost $6k to cover one week of groceries and $12k for two 

weeks. Food costs are 92% of the Program cost.
Yes Yes $12,000

11 of the 20 schools supported 

are in the City of Vernon (76% 

of the bags provided each 

week)

5
North Okanagan 

Pipes and Drums

Pipe Band that wants to pass their passion on to 

younger generation of the Scottish culture. They 

provide music and entertainment for large 

number of organizations throughout the year in 

the community. Those communities are the 

senior residences, Winter Carnival, etc.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

Program funding

New uniforms to build confidence and look good when 

representing the City.
2024 

Transactional 

activity 

provided only.  

No balance 

sheet or 

income 

statement

Yes $5,000

6

North Okanagan 

Valley Gleaners 

Society

Volunteer based charity operating in Vernon to 

assist those in need locally and around the word. 

They sell donated furniture at discount prices to 

local residents and work with local social service 

agencies to provide furniture free of change to 

those in need in the community. This reduces 

waste and creates affordable furniture to 

residents.

Project funding

to purchase a professional quality commercial grade 

upholstery cleaner/steamer/vacuum.

Yes Yes $6,750
20% Permissive 

Tax Exemption

Council Discretionary Grant Applications - April 2024 Intake
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Requested
Comments

Tax Exemption for 

2024

Approved 

2023 Grants

7

North Okanagan 

Valley Orchestra 

Society

Newly formed orchestra based in Vernon that put 

on public concerts and to seniors in care homes 

at no cost (donations accepted).

Program funding

to rent rehearsal space and contribute to the honorarium 

to the conductor. Yes Yes $1,000

8
Okanagan Screen Arts 

Society

They operate the Vernon Towne Theatre and host 

and curate daily arts and culture events at The 

Towne Theatre. Their goal is to diversify the 

theatre.

Program funding

to pay staff members 3 hrs per week to operate  weekly 

daytime matinee programming for seniors and adults. 
Yes Yes $2,715

9 School District No.22

SD22 serves over 9k students and the mission is 

to inspire and nurture students to thrive in their 

learning, relationship, and community. With new 

Provincial of K-12 Anti-Action Plan, SD22 

collaborated with local organization to produce 

"Voices of Vernon Cafe" as an approach to create 

dialogue about racism, discrimination, and 

prejudice. This will provide students to listen, 

learn and share in stories and encourage 

intercultural understanding.

Project funding

To fund Voices of Vernon World Café:

-Honorarium for facilitators $1200

-Refreshments and Lunch $1000

-Bussing for Students $1000

-Art and project supplies/phot printing $1000

-Volunteer coordination $1050

-Venue rental (ORL) $850

-Art project development (Vernon Public Art Gallery) 

$1000

Yes Yes $10,000 No evidence of financial need
Provincially 

Exempt

10

The Good Food Box 

Society of the North 

Okanagan

They provide affordable produce from the region 

through community partnerships. They are a 

volunteer-run community program that promotes 

healthy eating with locally grown food to all 

members of the community in an economical and 

accessible way, regardless of income. Members 

purchase a box a  month (at reduced cost).

Program funding

to support 40 families in Prenatal Program for 3 months - 

$2,400

to support 15 young families in the First Nations 

Friendship centre for 12 months - $3,600

to support 15 seniors for 12 months - $3,600

to support 15 families by social agencies for 12 months - 

$3,600

Income 

statement 

provided.  No 

balance 

sheet.

Yes $13,200

11
Turning Points 

Collaborative Society

The mission is to achieve safe and sustainable 

housing in the community and to provide a 

continuum of housing, addiction recovery, 

employment services, outreach and to promote 

overall health. They offer over 10 programs and 

manage 29 sites.

Program funding

Admin system - $1714.93

Subscription fee (for year and current fiscal year) - 

$10,331.94

25 additional hours for Support (ShareVision) until July 

31, 2026 for after consultants are no longer with them - 

$2953.13

Yes Yes $15,000

12
Vernon Community 

Band Society

They are Vernon's only community concert band. 

They welcomes all ages and perform at numerous 

Vernon events for the enjoyment of the entire 

city. The music is an opportunity to socialize and 

boost health, emotionally and physically.

Program funding

Use towards operation expenses to be able to practice 

and perform. This includes rental fee at WL Seaton 

School, liability insurance, transportation costs, and 

Honorarium to the conductor.
Yes Yes $400

13
Vernon Kokanee 

Swim Club (VKSC)

Competitive swim club that fosters skill, 

endurance, self-esteem and respect for 

competition to reach simmers "personal best".

Project funding

the use of Creekside Conference Centre and the 

Dogwood Gym for three days, June 21-23, for 2024 

Summer Divisionals. (Amount requested depends on the 

fee for 3 days as they are requesting the City only for the 

free use or technically however much it would cost to get 

that access, not an exact amount to be awarded). 

Yes Yes $1,635

FC Meeting - May 28, 2024 Page 31 of 375



Count Organization Organization Overview Type of Request Purpose of Grant Financials Minutes
Amount 

Requested
Comments
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2024
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14
Vernon Paddling 

Centre Society

Their mission if to promote safe and inclusive 

paddling program to Vernon and surrounding 

areas. The Society educates the community about 

safety on the water and proper stroke technique 

to reduce injury and increase enjoyment. They 

offer various levels of paddling activities.

Program funding

Replacing existing VPC signage at the entrance of 

Paddlewheel Park - $1500

Vernon Paddling Centre and Vernon Adaptive Paddling 

Signage on the existing structure at the paddling 

compound - $1500

Porta Potty Rental (Apr-Sep) that’s wheel chair accessible 

- $1500

Funds to Support Coaching for Vernon Adaptive Paddling - 

$5000

Yes Yes $9,500

15
WL Seaton Secondary 

"Sonics" Football

 Brand new program start of April 2024. They are 

a Junior Varsity Highschool Football program that 

focus on development of healthy athletes who 

strive for success with integrity and 

determination. The program prioritizes character 

building and leadership and the values team 

work, discipline and respect to be role models in 

the community. Currently 23 students registered 

from Seaton and another 16 from Kalamalka.

Program funding

To purchase protective and training equipment for the 

program: 

-Helmet that have 5-star safety rating with TPU 

cushioning

-shoulder, high, thigh, and knee pads

-field equipment; tackling bag/dummies, blocking 

shields/sleds and tackling wheels

-footballs, kicking tees, uniforms, training aids like cones, 

ladders and medicine balls

(quote attached also)

No 
No (they are 

new)
$20,000

New organization so a budget 

and list of directors is what 

was provided (as per our 

policy).

The student registration covers 

both Seaton and Kalamalka 

high schools.

TOTAL REQUESTED 15  $     123,500 

TOTAL APPROVED

TOTAL FUNDING AVAILABLE  $     100,000 
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THE CORPORATION OF THE CITY OF VERNON
3400 - 30th Street, Vernon, B.C. VlT 5E6

Telephone: (250) 545-1361 FAX: (250) 545-4048
website: www.vernon.ca

Corporate Policy
Section Finance

Sub-Section

Title Council Discretionary Grant Policy

RELATED POLICIES

Number Title

APPROVALS

Approved by:

"Wayne Lippert"

Mayor
Date:

November 13,2007

Updated Sec. 1.3@ to
include "excluding tax
exemptions."

"Remove clause
noting that unspent
funds in one fiscal
year are rolled over to
the next year."

"Amend intake
periods, remove
application form, and
perform various
housekeeping

POLICY APPROVAL: AMENDMENT APPROVAL: SECTION AMENDED

"Wayne Lippert"

Mayor

Amendment
Approved by

Date:
June 9, 2008

Date:
November 26,2012

Amendment
Approved by

"Rob Sawatzkf'
Mayor

Amendment
Approved by:

"Rob Sawatzky"
Mayor
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Corporate Policy
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updates and
changes."

"Amended paragraph
under Policy.
Amended Capital
Expenditures, lntake
Period, Project under
Definitions and added
Program.
Amended 1.2 (d) and
(e) and 2.2,2.2.1 and
3.1 (e)
Removed last
sentence"
"Section 4.0
(Recipient Reporting)
was added."

"Section 2.1 (b)
amended to remove
the words sef of and
change to completed
fiscal year and and
add within the last 2
years"

POLICY

The City supports the enhancement and preservation of a positive quality of life for all its
residents. One means of achieving this goal is through the provision of grants to
organizations that contribute to the general interest and advantage of the City.

The awarding of grants is solely within Council's discretion; Council may deny any and all
grant requests.

This policy is in effect subject to the continuance of ongoing annual funding

Organizations requesting $25,000 in a single year must submit, at their expense, audited
financial statements to the City.

Date:
Julv 15, 2013
Amendment Approved by

"Akbal Mund"
Mayor

Date:
March 12,2018

Amendment Approved by:

"Victor Cumming"
Mayor

Date:
June 8, 2020
Amendment Approved by:

"Victor Cumming"
Mayor

,

Date:
Mav 28,2021
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DEFINITIONS

Application means the documents listed in Section 2.1

Application Deadline means the 30th day of April and the 31st day of October

Capital Expenditure means providing an asset in the City of Vernon that is significant
and is of lasting benefit.

Gommunity Based means a non-restricted membership group or organization:
(a) whose practices are consistent with the City's Strategic Directions; and
(b) who provide program(s), project(s) or capital expenditure(s) which positively and

directly impact the City or its residents.

lntake Period means that applications will be accepted April 1 to April 30 up to 4:00pm
and October 1 to October 31 up to 4:00pm, or if City Hall is closed on the due date, the
next working day that City Hall is open up to 4:00 pm.

Project means a one-time event.

Program means an ongoing initiative by an organization. Funding preference will be
given to startup programs.

Regional Funding means a funding source from surrounding communities or the
regional district.

Resident means an individual who resides in the City

PROCEDURES

1.0 Eligibility for Grants

1.2

1.1 An organizalion wishing to be considered for a discretionary grant will
have to submit an apPlication.

Each year, the City may award discretionary grants to organizations for
the purpose of providing funding for a program, project or capital
expenditure. An organization must meet the following criteria in order to
qualify for a grant:
(a) The organization must be a non-profit organization or registered

society;
(b) The organization must be Community Based;
(c) The organization is providing a service which is not provided by

any other group or organization within the City or which is provided
for in another municipality and is used by Residents.
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'1.3

(d) The organization may only submit one application per calendar
year.

An organization is not eligible for a grant and the request will be denied if
the grant:
(a) ls for retroactive funding or to cover a deficit.

1.4 Preference will be given to organizations who are not receiving local
government funding such as:
(a) Regional funding
(b) Grants or other assistance from the City of Vernon, excluding tax

exemptions.

2.0 ApplicationProcess

2.1 The organization must submit the following documents which form the
application to apply for a grant:
(a) A signed, completed application form;
(b) The most recent completed fiscal year financial statements within

the last 2 years;
(c) The minutes of the most recent annual general meeting;
(d) A list of the members of the executive (including positions held,

address and contact numbers);
(e) Confirmation of registered society status.
(f) A profile and history of the organization and its accomplishments.

2.1.1 lncomplete applications will not be considered

2.2 The organization must submit the application to the Director of Financial
Services, at Vernon City Hall no later than 4:00 pm on the application
date(s), or if City Hall is closed on that day, no later than 4:00pm on the
next working day that City Hall is open.

2.2.1 Applications for funding will be made on a semi-annual basis for those
applications received between the intake periods of April 1 to April 30
4:00pm and October 1 to October 31, 4:00 pm each year, or if City Hall is
closed on the 30th of April or the 31st of October, no later than 4:00 pm on
the next working day that City Hall is open.

An application received before or after the application deadline will be
returned to the applicant.

The Finance Division will:
(a) Review all applications to ensure policy compliance; and
(b) Fonruard the applications to the Finance Committee for

consideration and recommendation to City Council.

2.3
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(c) Where funds have been exhausted for the current fiscal year the
Director of Financial Services will advise the applicant by letter, and
forward a copy of the notification to Mayor and Council.

3.0 CouncilConsideration

3.1 The Finance Committee will consider the following factors when making
recommendations to Council as to which organizations it will support or
deny a grant:
(a) The extent to which an application demonstrates that there is need

in the community;
(b) The extent to which the profile and history of the organization and

its accomplishments and organization's goals and objectives are
supportive of, or align with the City's Strategic Directions;

(c) The degree to which the grant will support the enhancement of a
positive quality of life for all City Residents;

(d) The extent to which the organization has obtained other sources of
funding (e.9. Federal or Provincial Government funding, corporate
sponsorships, fund raising campaigns, etc.);

(e) The availability of funds budgeted for discretionary grants;
(f) The need(s) of the organization requesting funding;
(g) The degree of demonstrated economic development,

environmental stewardship or social benefit that may be generated
by the award of a Council Discretionary Grant.

4.0 Recipient Reporting

The Finance Committee will correspond with organizations that have
received a discretionary grant within twelve months of receipt to ensure
that the awarded grant funds will be spent.

Organizations that have received a discretionary grant must submit a

report to the City within two years of receipt disclosing details on how the
grant funds were spent. lf none of the grant was spent, the grant must be
returned to the City within two years of receipt.

4.3 lf the above requirement is not followed by an organization receiving a

discretionary grant, subsequent applications from that organization will not
be approved.

4.1

4.2
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#201 - 3402 - 27th Avenue 
Vernon, BC   V1T 1S1 

Phone:  (250) 545-3390 
Fax:  (250) 549-1548 

E-mail:  info@vernonfrc.ca 
www.vernonfrc.ca 

 

Board Members 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

ADVISORS 
 

BDO – Accounting 
 

Lidstone & Company – Legal 
 

 
Updated January 2024 
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                               Family Resource Centre 2022 - 2023  Annual General Meeting 
Draft Meeting Minutes 

September 26, 2023 

1) Call to order and Welcome 

The Board Chair Barb Keith, called to order the Annual General Meeting at 12:02 pm via Zoom with 

ten society members present to meet quorum. 

- Barb Keith, Melanie Prince, Shanna Rowney, Carol Dorscher, Jim Swingle, Edith Thoreson, Jennifer 

Morrison, River Riemer, Shawna Patenaude, Jo-Anne Burge 

2) Approval of Agenda and Minutes from the 2022 Annual General Meeting

It was noted by Jim that Ryan Roux would be presenting the Financial Report and not Brett Mitchell 

as stated in the Agenda and a motion was made by Jo-Ann Burge and seconded by Jennifer Morrison 

that the amended Agenda and Minutes from the September 20, 2022 AGM be accepted as 

presented.  CARRIED

3) Financial Report

  Ryan Roux from BDO presented the audited financial statements as at fiscal year March 31, 2023. 

It was moved by Shanna Rowney and seconded by Jim Swingle that the Financial Report be accepted 

as presented. CARRIED

3) Appointment of Auditor

It was moved River Riemer and seconded by Jennifer Morrison that BDO Chartered Accountants be 

appointed as the auditor for the Family Resource Centre for the 2023 - 2024 fiscal period.  

CARRIED

4) Report from the Board Chair 

Barb thanked the staff and board for their hard work. 

It was moved by Jim Swingle and seconded by Shanna Rowney that the Board Chair Report be 

accepted as presented.  CARRIED

5)  Executive Director and Staff Reports 

Barb questioned Jim about Women’s Trauma wait lists. He advised they are concentrating on Stage 

1. Carol advised that the wait list has gone down from 1 year to 1 -2 months. 

It was moved by Edith Thoreson and seconded by Shawna Patenaude that the Executive Director 

and Staff Reports be accepted as presented.  CARRIED

6) New Business 

a) Nomination Report

It was moved by Jo-Ann Burge and seconded by Jim Swingle that the Nomination Report be 

accepted as presented.  CARRIED 
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                               Family Resource Centre 2022 - 2023  Annual General Meeting 
Draft Meeting Minutes 

September 26, 2023 

Current Board of Directors 2022 - 2023

Barbara Keith Amanda Rekdale Debra Law Shanna Rowney 

Melanie Prince Kim Shippam  River Riemer 

Nominations for One Year Term - Barbara Keith, Melanie Prince, Debra Law, Kim Shippam, Shanna 

Rowney, Shawna Patenaude  (term ends Sep 2024) 

Terms Completed in 2023 - Barbara Keith, Melanie Prince, Debra Law, Shanna Rowney, Amanda 

Rekdale, Kim Shippam 

One Year Remaining in Term - River Riemer (term ends Sep 2024)  

7) Closing remarks and adjournment 

Barb thanked everyone again, especially all the staff who helped with the move to the new office. 

Adjourned at 12:22 pm 
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2023 BC SOCIETY ANNUAL REPORT
BC Society • Societies Act

NAME OF SOCIETY: KALAMALKA STARFISH SOCIETY
Incorporation Number: S0072281

Business Number: 76099 5274 BC0001

Filed Date and Time: October 26, 2023 07:27 AM Pacific Time

Annual General Meeting (AGM) Date: September 28, 2023

REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS INFORMATION

301 - 3126 31 AV
VERNON BC V1T 2H1

Delivery Address: Mailing Address:

301 - 3126 31 AV
VERNON BC V1T 2H1

DIRECTOR INFORMATION AS OF September 28, 2023

BC Registries and Online Services

Incorporation Number S0072281 www.gov.bc.ca/Societies 1 2Page of
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CERTIFICATION

I,  certify that I have relevant knowledge of the society, and that I am authorized to make this
filing.

BC Registries and Online Services

Incorporation Number S0072281 www.gov.bc.ca/Societies 2 2Page of
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Schools served by the Starfish Program 2023 - 2024

Armstrong
Armstrong Elementary School (AES)

Len Wood Middle School

Cherryville
Cherryville

Coldstream
Coldstream Elementary

Kidston Elementary

Lavington Elementary

Enderby
M.V. Beattie Elementary School

Lumby
J.W. Inglis Elementary

Charles Bloom High School – Gr. 7 only

Okanagan Indian Band
Cultural Immersion School - Gr 1 - 7

Vernon
Alexis Park

Beairsto

BX

Ellison

Harwood

Hillview

Mission Hill

Okanagan Landing

Silver Star

Alternative Learning Program/Open Door

Vlearn

Total

Note: Bags are normally delivered for 35 weeks per school year.  
An October start is normal as it takes schools some time to identify students at risk.
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Notice of AGM 
Kalamalka Starfish Society 

 
 
Date: September 28, 2023, 4:00pm-4:30pm 

Location: Davidson Lawyers Board Room and MS Teams 

Attendees:  
 Voting Members:  
 Non-Voting Members:  
  
 
THE AGM WAS HELD AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1.  (the Chair) called the meeting to order at 4:01pm; quorum was confirmed.  

2. Approve annual report of directors: Motion by the Chair; seconded by ; passed 
unanimously.  

3. Approve last years’ financial statements: Motion by the Chair; seconded by  
passed unanimously.  

4. Approve acts of directors since last AGM: Motion by the Chair; seconded by  
passed unanimously.  

5. To waive the appointment of an auditor: Motion by the Chair; seconded by ; 
passed unanimously.  

6. Elect directors 

(a) President:  nominated ; no other nominations,  accepted.  

(b) Vice President:  nominated ; no other nominations;  accepted 

(c) Director at Large:  nominated  no other nominations,  
accepted.  

7. Other Business properly brought before the meeting: none.  

8. The Chair adjourned the meeting at 4:30pm.  

 

Dated this October 4, 2023 

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

   

 

 

Secretary 
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Kalamalka Starfish Society
Balance Sheet

As of July 31, 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, January 26, 2024 09:59 AM GMT-08:00   1/1

TOTAL

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Money Market 200,000.00

Prospera Chequing 21,906.31

Prospera Savings 91,952.36

Total Cash and Cash Equivalent $313,858.67

Total Current Assets $313,858.67

Total Assets $313,858.67

Liabilities and Equity

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable (A/P)

Accounts Payable (A/P) 0.00

Total Accounts Payable (A/P) $0.00

Total Current Liabilities $0.00

Total Liabilities $0.00

Equity

Opening Balance Equity 0.00

Retained Earnings 310,538.67

Profit for the year 3,320.00

Total Equity $313,858.67

Total Liabilities and Equity $313,858.67
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Kalamalka Starfish Society
Profit and Loss

August 2022 - July 2023

Accrual Basis  Friday, January 26, 2024 10:00 AM GMT-08:00   1/1

TOTAL

INCOME

Donations 95,555.29

Total Income $95,555.29

GROSS PROFIT $95,555.29

EXPENSES

Advertising 201.77

Credit Card Fees 717.70

Insurance - Liability 1,691.00

Office expenses 671.27

Office/General Administrative Expenses 1,750.35

Promotional 893.65

Supplies

Food 88,241.91

Total Supplies 88,241.91

Website 20.00

Total Expenses $94,187.65

OTHER INCOME

Interest earned 1,952.36

Total Other Income $1,952.36

PROFIT $3,320.00
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Kalamalka Starfish Society
Estimated Pro-Forma for 2025
August 1, 2024 to July 31, 2025

Analysis of Estimated Cash Flow and Budget
FY2025

Revenues

Donations (net of admin fees, note 1) 202,975
CFNO Donation 25,000
Donated Rent 6,000
Interest Income 4,000

237,975

Program Expenses
Groceries and food costs (note 2) 196,875
Summer Program (note 2) 20,000
Cooking Program (note 2) 5,000

221,875

Other Expenses
Advertising and Promotion 2,000
Credit Card Fees 800
Bank Charges 800
Keela Software 1,500
Insurance 1,800
Legal Costs 200
Training 500
Office and Misc 1,500
Donor/Partner Recognition 1,000
Rent (note 1) 6,000

16,100

Revenues in excess (deficiency) of expenses -                     

(1)              Donation revenue consists of the following anticipated estimated donation amounts:

Source
Grants - various sources 40,000
Peer to Peer fundraisers 10,000

Private donations* 122,975.00      122,975.00       

Rotary Golf Course Fundraiser 30,000.00         30,000.00          

Total donation revenue 202,975

(2)              Food costs estimated to be:

Anticipated demand for fiscal 2025 is:
Weekend Program 225 packs
Summer Program 100 packs

Anticipated program cost
Weekend Program 25.00$                                      cost per pack per week
Summer Program 25.00$                                      cost per pack per week
Cooking Program 5,000.00$                                 total cost

Anticipated program duration
Weekend Program 35                                              weeks
Summer Program 8                                                 weeks
Cooking Program n/a

*Historical donations from individuals and corporations in range of $50,000 to $132,000 from 
2017 to date
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The Corporation of the City of Vernon 
COUNCIL DISCRETIONARY GRANT APPLICATION FORM 

City Hall Address:  3400 30th Street, Vernon BC, V1T 5E6 
Inquiries: 250-545-1361 

 www.vernon.ca 

day, on the next working day that City Hall is open.  

IMPORTANT: The deadline for Council Discretionary Grant Applications are 
semi-annual being April 30 and October 31 each calendar year. 

Applications will only be accepted during the intake periods of April 1 - April 30 and October 1 
to October 31. Applications must be submitted to the Director of Financial Services no later 

than 4:30 pm on the application deadline (April 30th and October 31st), if City Hall is closed that 

Applicants may run the risk of grant funding being depleted if waiting to apply until the October 
intake deadline. 

If grant applications are received after the cut off periods they will be returned to the applicant 
and must be submitted at the next intake period. 

Please note: Incomplete applications will not be considered 

ORGANIZATION INFORMATION 

NAME OF ORGANIZATION  
APPLYING FOR COUNCIL DISCRETIONARY GRANT: 

CONTACT PERSON: 

ORGANIZATION MAILING ADDRESS: 

BUSINESS PHONE: 

EMAIL ADDRESS: 

REGISTERED NON PROFIT SOCIETY 
INCORPORATION NUMBER (required): 

"Personal information contained on this form is collected under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 
and will be used only for the purposes of responding to your request''.

Turning Points Collaborative Society 

 

#102, 3301 – 24th Avenue, Vernon, BC, V1T 9S8   

250-808-0113   

  

Reset

107542540RR0001   
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The Corporation of the City of Vernon 
COUNCIL DISCRETIONARY GRANT APPLICATION FORM 

City Hall Address:  3400 30th Street, Vernon BC, V1T 5E6 
Inquiries: 250-545-1361 

www.vernon.ca 
 

ORGANIZATION GOALS, OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SERVICE PROVIDED TO THE COMMUNITY: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A PROFILE AND HISTORY OF THE ORGANIZATION AND ITS ACCOMPLISHMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLEASE IDENTIFY THE STEPS YOUR ORGANIZATION HAS TAKEN TO ACQUIRE GRANTS FROM OTHER SOURCES: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Turning Points Collaborative Society (TPCS) is dedicated to fostering community well-being through our comprehensive continuum of care, which includes outreach, shelter, housing, addictions recovery, and employment services. This approach addresses the 
varied needs of our community members and is guided by our: 

Vision: Building community; Strengthening people. 

Mission: To achieve safe and sustainable housing in our communities by providing a continuum of housing, promoting health, and offering community outreach, employment and addiction services. 

Mandate: 

To provide safe and supportive housing alternatives that meet the needs of people who are homeless, at risk of being homeless or who are marginally housed. 

To promote the health and safety of our community through social development and public education activities. 

To build and deliver programs and services to strengthen life skills and provide opportunities for people in need. 

To develop and deliver programs and resources that provide a continuum of recovery services. 

For a detailed list of our specific organizational goals, objectives, and the activities designed to achieve these, please see the attached document, "Strat Plan Leadership Updates - 2023-24". 

TPCS manages a broad spectrum of services across 29 sites and 10+ additional non-residential programs from Enderby to West Kelowna. We offer nightly shelter and housing in 633 units to a diverse population. Our comprehensive service array caters to 
individuals experiencing or at risk of homelessness, including support for seniors, women and children, Indigenous people, individuals with disabilities, veterans, racialized communities, and newcomers. 

Key Services Include: 

Homeless Outreach (Clinic, Street, In-Home): Provides immediate assistance and connects individuals to medical and psychological resources. Our outreach team, trained to identify signs of substance use and mental health conditions, ensures access to harm 
reduction supplies and primary healthcare. 

Emergency Mat Programs: Offers refuge during extreme weather conditions and crises, providing not only shelter but also medical assistance in partnership with local healthcare providers. 

Homeless Prevention Services: Proactively addresses homelessness by offering rental subsidies, transportation, and support services, ensuring access to safe and sustainable housing. 

Shelter Services: More than just a roof, our shelters provide an environment conducive to healing and recovery, with on-site professional support for substance use and mental health challenges. 

Housing Services: Offers a range from supportive to affordable housing, integrated with support services like addiction recovery, primary healthcare, and ongoing support to ensure stable tenancy. 

Rental Supplement Programs: Manages programs through BC Housing to assist individuals in maintaining or securing housing, significantly aiding those in need across all regions. 

Employment Services: Tailored to individuals with multiple barriers to employment, integrating necessary support with direct access to our outreach programs for comprehensive service. 

Expanded Addictions Recovery Programs: Provides individualized recovery pathways, integrating bio/psycho/social and 12-step recovery models, and includes family support programs. 

Shelter Diversion: Proactively secures safe, permanent housing solutions, reducing dependency on temporary shelters and enhancing community capacity. 

Rapid Re-Housing: Swiftly transitions individuals from shelters or the streets into long-term housing, focusing on a cost-effective approach to homelessness. 

Social Enterprise (Howard Industries): Offers employment opportunities in various sectors, enhancing participant confidence and community contributions. 

Micro Loan Program: Provides emergency financial support to prevent further financial entrenchment for individuals on fixed incomes. 

Truth and Reconciliation Program: Previously led by an Indigenous Cultural Safety Consultant, this program focused on educating staff and fostering culturally safe environments. 

Integrated Communities/Scattered Sites Program: Tailors support for a diverse group, particularly seniors, combining safe housing with necessary interventions. 

Peer Work Positions: Engages individuals with lived experience to ensure services are empathetic and impactful. 

Each facet of our continuum of care is meticulously designed to support and enhance the well-being of individuals, contributing to higher housing retention and overall community success. Through our interlinked ecosystem of support, we create a sustainable 
housing model that meets the diverse needs of our community. Please see our attached “2022-23 Impact Report” for more information into our services/impact provided.  

Founded in 1957 as a chapter of the John Howard Society, Turning Points Collaborative Society has evolved significantly to address the dynamic needs of the community. 
Originally established to support transient men and parolees, our organization has expanded its focus to a broad spectrum of supportive services and housing solutions for the 
most vulnerable populations. For a detailed look into our history, please visit: https://turningpoints.ngo/who-we-are/history-of-turning-points. 

Significant Milestones: 

1957-2018: Started as a small operation in Kelowna, focusing initially on transient men and parolees. Over the decades, we introduced various programs, including Howard 
House for transient men, Howard Industries, and expanded services to include women and individuals facing housing insecurity. In 2018, we officially became Turning Points 
Collaborative Society, marking our independence and a renewed focus on inclusive and comprehensive support services. 

Rapid Growth since 2017: Under the leadership of Randene Wejr, who joined as Executive Director, we embarked on a strategic expansion to scale our impact across the 
Okanagan from Enderby to Summerland. Staff numbers grew from 50 to over 200, reflecting our enhanced capacity to serve a diverse client base. 

Recent Developments (2020-2023): Responded proactively to COVID-19 by merging shelters and starting new programs like the West Kelowna outreach program. Opened 
multiple new facilities including The Crossings in Vernon, assumed operations of Columbus Village in Kelowna, and continued to secure affordable housing properties to ensure 
long-term sustainability and support. 

Future Initiatives: In 2024, we will open Trailside, a 60-unit transitional housing facility in Kelowna, and have plans for additional affordable housing sites in West Kelowna and 
Summerland set to commence operations in 2025 and beyond. 

Throughout our history, TPCS has been dedicated to a mission of creating safe, sustainable housing and providing comprehensive support services. Our growth and adaptability 
demonstrate our commitment to building a stronger community through collaborative efforts and strategic development. 

TPCS has systematically pursued multiple grants to ensure the continuous enhancement and expansion of our services. Two significant grants that highlight our approach to securing external funding include: 

Community Services Recovery Fund (CSRF): 

Grant Amount Received: $66,000 (applied for $100,000) 

Purpose: To develop and enhance our case management system to better serve our continuum of care. 

Process: 

Conducted a comprehensive needs assessment to pinpoint critical gaps in our case management capabilities. 

Researched potential funding sources that align with our strategic goals, identifying CSRF as a prime candidate. 

Prepared a detailed grant proposal outlining project objectives, anticipated outcomes, and the direct impact on service delivery. 

Engaged in rigorous project planning and alignment with our mission to ensure strong proposal cohesiveness. 

Implementation began in 2023, with final reporting and project completion scheduled for June 2024 to demonstrate the impact and sustainability of the enhancements. 

Housing Provider Information Technology Grant from BC Housing: 

Grant Amount: $94,468 

Purpose: To procure essential IT hardware to support all staff and programs, enhancing operational efficiency and readiness for system upgrades. 

Process: 

Identified the urgent need for updated IT infrastructure to support efficient service delivery across the organization. 

Developed a focused grant application emphasizing the critical role of modern IT equipment in enhancing service effectiveness. 

Successfully secured the grant and executed a strategic rollout of IT hardware, significantly boosting our technological capabilities. 

Bridging Funding Gaps: 

The CSRF grant awarded was less than the applied amount, which led us to seek additional funding sources to cover the shortfall. The Council Discretionary Grant is being pursued to address this gap, specifically aiding in customization needs that were not fully 
known at the time of the initial grant application. This funding is crucial for us to finalize the customization of our case management system through ShareVision, enhancing our training processes and overall service delivery effectiveness. 

These steps reflect our proactive and strategic approach to securing the necessary funding for critical organizational improvements. Each grant pursued is aligned with our broader mission to provide comprehensive support to vulnerable populations, ensuring that 
every funding opportunity is maximized to benefit our community effectively. 
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The Corporation of the City of Vernon 
COUNCIL DISCRETIONARY GRANT APPLICATION FORM 

City Hall Address:  3400 30th Street, Vernon BC, V1T 5E6 
Inquiries: 250-545-1361 

www.vernon.ca 
 

GRANT REQUEST  
(You may wish to provide attachments, please note below where these items can be found.) 

 
AMOUNT OF REQUEST: 
 
 
 
 
IN-KIND SERVICES ‐ labour, materials, goods or services your organization is receiving from third parties related to    
the purpose of the grant use that are over and above the grant amount being requested from the City of Vernon:      
(please describe and include cost) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PURPOSE OF GRANT AND PROPOSED ALLOCATION OF FUNDS: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BENEFITS TO COMMUNITY RESULTING FROM GRANT OR CITY GOALS AND OBJECTIVES THAT WILL BE MET, IF THE 
GRANT IS APPROVED: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DEGREE OF COMMUNITY FINANCIAL SUPPORT OR SPONSORSHIP:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TPCS is requesting a total of $15,000.00 from the Council Discretionary Grant. This request is specifically aimed at addressing the financial shortfall required to upgrade from the basic ShareVision model to ShareVision Plus, a more advanced version of our current 
case management system. 

Breakdown of Funding Request/Need: 

Administration: 

Request: $1,714.93 

Subscription Fee: 

Request: $10,331.94 

Support Hours (ShareVision): 

Request: $2,953.13 

Rationale and Justification for Request: The need to upgrade to ShareVision Plus arises from the limitations experienced with the basic version currently in use. The Plus version offers enhanced customization capabilities that are critical for TPCS to efficiently 
manage and adapt our case management processes. This customization will significantly improve our ability to collect and analyze data, enhance security measures, and streamline reporting processes. Importantly, it will also reduce the need for clients to repeatedly 
provide the same personal information each time they re-enter our programs or sites, thereby minimizing their trauma and enhancing the overall service experience. 

This upgrade is essential for TPCS to effectively respond to the complex needs of our community. By ensuring that our case management system is robust and adaptable, we can provide services that are not only more responsive but also more compassionate. The 
funding requested will bridge the gap left by previous grants and ensure that TPCS can fully leverage the technological advances offered by ShareVision Plus to meet the current and future needs of our service users. 

TPCS is leveraging significant internal resources as in-kind contributions to complement the financial request made to the City of Vernon. These in-kind contributions are vital to the successful implementation and ongoing management of our upgraded ShareVision 
Plus system: 

Consultant Support: 

In-Kind Contribution: $30,000 

Description: TPCS is allocating $30,000 as an in-kind contribution for the continued support of our consultant, Mitch DeCock. This funding is dedicated to extending his engagement beyond the initial project term, ensuring that TPCS has expert guidance available 
during the critical transition phase to the ShareVision Plus system. This support is essential for addressing any technical challenges that arise and for adapting the system to our specific operational needs. 

Administrative Support: 

In-Kind Contribution: $3,813.20 

Description: TPCS provides additional administrative support valued at $3,813.20. This contribution covers the administrative tasks related to the management and oversight of the ShareVision system upgrade, including coordination of meetings, documentation, and 
other back-end support essential for project continuity. 

Fund Development Coordinator Support: 

In-Kind Contribution: Approximately $10,000 

Description: The Fund Development Coordinator contributes over $10,000 worth of time, calculated at 5 hours per week, to assist staff and management with troubleshooting the new system. This ongoing support ensures that the system is effectively integrated into 
daily operations and that all users are capable of utilizing its features to enhance service delivery. 

These internal in-kind contributions significantly enhance the value and impact of the Council Discretionary Grant by ensuring that TPCS has the necessary resources to successfully implement and sustain the ShareVision Plus system. This commitment reflects our 
organization's dedication to leveraging both financial and internal resources to improve our capabilities and service outcomes. 

Purpose of Grant: TPCS seeks funding from the Council Discretionary Grant to enhance our case management capabilities through the upgrade to ShareVision Plus. This system upgrade is essential to our continued efforts to provide efficient, secure, and 
compassionate services to those in need. Specifically, the grant will enable us to fully implement the ShareVision Plus system, which offers superior customization features that are crucial for improving our data management, reporting capabilities, security, and 
reducing the trauma experienced by clients when they re-enter our programs. 

Proposed Allocation of Funds: The total request of $15,000 from the Council Discretionary Grant will be allocated as follows: 

Subscription Fee ($10,331.94): 

This portion of the grant will cover the cost difference for one fiscal year's subscription under the current plan and provide for an additional year of the ShareVision Plus subscription. This extended subscription is essential not only for covering the increase from the 
basic to the Plus version but also for ensuring the sustainability of the system after our consultant's engagement concludes. The additional year will allow our team continued access to enhanced features and support, facilitating necessary adjustments as we fully 
integrate the system into our operations. This period is crucial for our internal team to adapt to and take full ownership of the new system, ensuring a smooth transition and maximized system capabilities without interruption. 

Support Hours ($2,953.13): 

These funds will be used to secure an additional 25 hours of support from ShareVision, extending beyond the initial setup phase. This will assist with ongoing technical customization and troubleshooting, crucial for maximizing the system’s potential and ensuring its 
effective integration into our daily operations. 

Administration Costs ($1,714.93): 

The administrative portion of the funds will cover the costs associated with managing the upgrade project. This includes coordination of activities, managing vendor relations, and ensuring that all aspects of the system transition are effectively overseen. 

Please see attached “Breakdown of Funding Request & Need” for an outline of our request. 

Impact of Grant: By securing this grant, TPCS will be able to address the critical technological needs that have been highlighted through our previous operations. The enhanced features of ShareVision Plus will allow us to better manage client data across multiple 
touchpoints, thereby improving our service delivery and the overall client experience. Additionally, the customization capabilities of the new system will enable us to adapt more quickly to changes in client needs and regulatory requirements, thus improving our 
responsiveness and effectiveness in serving the community. 

Sustainability and Commitment: It's important to note that any surplus funds, particularly those originating from BC Housing, are held specifically for future BC Housing projects and remain the property of BC Housing as deferred contributions. This ensures that all 
funds are allocated appropriately and transparently, aligning with specific project requirements and regulatory guidelines. 

Regardless of the outcome of this grant application, Turning Points Collaborative Society is committed to proceeding with the enhancements to our case management system. The upgrade to ShareVision Plus is crucial for our continued delivery of high-quality 
services. While any financial support received through this grant would significantly aid in achieving our goals more efficiently and effectively, our dedication to this project and its potential impact on our community remains steadfast. We believe that every 
contribution, no matter the size, will make a substantial difference in our ability to serve our community better. 

The Council Discretionary Grant sought by TPCS for upgrading to ShareVision Plus aligns directly with several key aspects of the City of Vernon’s 2023-2026 council strategic plan, specifically under the themes of Livability, Governance and Organizational 
Excellence. The approval of this grant will facilitate significant benefits: 

Enhancing Livability through Improved Housing Services: 

Housing Diversity and Development: By upgrading our case management system to ShareVision Plus, TPCS will enhance its ability to efficiently manage housing services, thereby supporting the city’s goal to encourage housing diversity and development. The 
system’s improved data management capabilities will allow for better tracking of housing availability and client housing histories, leading to more effective placement and support of individuals in need. 

Community Safety: The upgraded system will also play a crucial role in collaboratively addressing street entrenchment issues. By ensuring more efficient case management and client tracking, TPCS can more effectively collaborate with emergency services and 
other community organizations to enhance the safety and well-being of vulnerable populations. 

Governance and Organizational Excellence: 

Good Governance: The implementation of ShareVision Plus will exemplify strong and disciplined decision-making. By investing in advanced technology solutions that improve our service delivery, TPCS demonstrates a commitment to good governance practices that 
align with the city’s objectives. 

Recruitment and Retention: A more efficient and user-friendly case management system not only enhances our ability to serve the community but also supports our staff. By reducing administrative burdens and improving data accessibility, the system helps create a 
supportive work environment that aids in the retention and satisfaction of employees. 

Sound Internal Processes: Upgrading to ShareVision Plus will streamline TPCS’s internal systems and processes, ensuring that our service delivery is more effective and efficient. This directly supports the city’s focus on enhancing internal systems to improve 
overall service provision. 

Community Impact: The successful implementation of ShareVision Plus will enable TPCS to provide services that are not only more responsive but also more precise and tailored to individual needs. This leads to a direct improvement in the quality of life for 
individuals and families we serve, contributing to a more resilient, equitable, and accessible community. The enhanced data security and improved reporting capabilities will also ensure greater accountability and transparency in how services are delivered and 
evaluated, reinforcing trust and confidence in the services provided by TPCS. 

TPCS receives robust financial support and sponsorship from a variety of community sources, which underscores the local commitment to our mission and services. This support not only facilitates our daily operations but also bolsters our capacity to launch 
significant projects such as the upgrade to ShareVision Plus. Here are key highlights of our community financial support and sponsorship: 

Local Businesses and Corporations: 

TPCS partners with several local businesses that provide financial contributions and in-kind services. These partnerships help reduce operational costs and enhance our program offerings. Examples include local tech companies providing equipment and software at 
reduced costs, and construction firms assisting in the renovation of our facilities. 

Government Grants and Funding: 

In addition to the Council Discretionary Grant, TPCS regularly receives funding from municipal, provincial, and federal government sources. These grants are pivotal in supporting our expansive range of services and strategic initiatives, demonstrating significant trust 
and investment from governmental bodies in our work. 

Private Donations and Philanthropy: 

We receive support from individual donors and philanthropic organizations, which often target specific projects or general operational support. This level of personal and philanthropic commitment is crucial for filling funding gaps and enabling flexibility in our response 
to emerging needs. 

Community Foundations and Non-Profit Partnerships: 

Collaborations with community foundations and other non-profit organizations often result in financial support for shared goals, particularly those aiming at housing stability and homelessness prevention. These partnerships are testament to the community’s 
collective effort to address social issues comprehensively. 

Impact of Community Support: 

The diverse financial backing from our community partners and sponsors enhances our operational capabilities and allows for strategic investments in long-term projects like the ShareVision Plus upgrade. The Council Discretionary Grant will play a pivotal role in this 
technology enhancement, enabling us to significantly improve our data management and service delivery systems. Continuous community support post-grant will ensure the sustainability of the system, enabling ongoing maintenance and upgrades to meet evolving 
community needs, and maximizing the long-term benefits of this investment. 
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The Corporation of the City of Vernon 
COUNCIL DISCRETIONARY GRANT APPLICATION FORM 

City Hall Address:  3400 30th Street, Vernon BC, V1T 5E6 
Inquiries: 250-545-1361 

www.vernon.ca 
 

DEGREE OF DEMONSTRATED ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENVIRONMENTAL STEWARDSHIP OR SOCIAL BENEFIT 
THAT MAY BE GENERATED BY THE AWARD OF A COUNCIL DISCRETIONARY GRANT: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
GRANT QUALIFICATION CHECKLIST (please check all that apply): 
 

 Community Based 
 Providing a service which is not provided by any other group or organization within the City or which 

is provided for in another municipality and used by residents 
 Must only submit one application per calendar year 
 Grant request is not to cover retroactive funding or to cover a deficit 

 
Note: Organizations do not qualify for the discretionary grant program if they are in receipt of regional funding or 

are receiving grants or other assistance from the City of Vernon. 
 

 
GRANT REQUIREMENTS (please attach to your grant application): 
 

 Most Recent Set of Financial Statements 
 Minutes of Most Recent Annual General Meeting 
 List of Members of the Executive (including positions held, address and contact numbers) 

 
In the case of newly formed groups, a budget and information regarding the organization purpose including list of 
Board of Directors will be sufficient.  

 
 
 

_________________________________     _______________________________ 
Date         Signature 

The award of the Council Discretionary Grant to TPCS for upgrading to ShareVision Plus will have significant environmental and social impacts. By transitioning from a primarily 
paper-based case management system to an advanced digital system, TPCS will drastically reduce its environmental footprint. This shift not only conserves resources and 
decreases waste but also aligns with broader community goals of sustainability and responsible resource management. 

The social benefits of implementing a more sophisticated case management system are profound. ShareVision Plus will enhance our ability to track and manage client data 
efficiently, leading to fewer individuals falling through the cracks. The system will minimize the need for clients to repeatedly share traumatic experiences, thereby reducing their 
emotional distress and enhancing the overall care process. Improved data management capabilities will allow for more effective coordination of services and resources, ensuring 
that clients receive timely and appropriate support. This leads to better overall case management outcomes, including more stable housing placements, improved health 
outcomes, and a higher rate of successful integration into the community. 

These enhancements brought by the Council Discretionary Grant will not only support TPCS’s mission but also contribute to the city’s objectives of fostering an inclusive, 
supportive, and resilient community. The integration of this technology demonstrates a commitment to both environmental stewardship and social well-being, setting a standard 
for innovation and care in community services. 

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

April 30, 2024
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CSRF Request CSRF Funding Received
CSRF Details/Description

ShareVision Plus
 Upgrade Costs ShareVision Plus Description

Request through 
Council Discrestionary Council Discrestionary Grant Description

Totals $100,000.00 $66,000.00 $55,281.26 $15,000.00 Total Request

admin $10,000.00 $6,600.00 10% $5,528.13
in-kind contribution of $3,813.20 from TPCS admin 
allocations $1,714.93 Administration of system

consultants $70,000.00 $35,000.00 quote confirmed, amount approved $30,000.00 in-kind contribution from TPCS admin allocations $0.00 TPCS in-kind contribution of $30,000
start up fee $0.00 included in subscription invoice $0.00 N/A $0.00 N/A

subscription fee (5500) $11,000.00 $14,868.06

start up fees and 2 years of subscription - July 31, 2025 end.
 After this date, allocation of admin from all programs will be used to cover the 

annual expenses for the system $16,800.00

Amount needed would be $8,400 for one year, plus 
the difference from the current fiscal year of 
$1,931.94 for a total need of $10,331.94 $10,331.94

Difference in costs for one fiscal year, plus 
an additional year of subscription costs. 
Sustianability plan to acquire additional 
funding or to split the costs of one year - 
$8,400 between our 29 sites and 6 
applicable non-residential programs for a 
total of $240 annually for each site/program

support hours (share vision) $9,000.00 $5,906.26 25 hours of support hours (25hrs per year for 2 years - July 31, 2025 end) $2,953.13

25 additional hours of support until July 31, 2026 for 
additional support after our consultant is no-longer 
with us $2,953.13

An additional 25 hours of ShareVision 
support to assist with the technical 
customization needed for the success of the 
project

Internal wages (ShareVision Developer & Training Facilitation) $0.00 $3,625.68 Quoted amount changed as taxes and extra support hours were not accurate $0.00 N/A $0.00 N/A

Breakdown of Funding Request/Need

breakdown of amount requested
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List of Board Members  
Turning Po ints Collaborative Society  

Webpage: https://turningpoints.ngo/who-we-are/board-members  
Board of Directors Contact Email: bod@turningpoints.ngo  
 

NAME OF 
INDIVIDUAL 

BACKGROUND/DESCRIPTION  

KEVIN 
ROBERTSON 
(BOARD 
PRESIDENT) 

Kevin joined the board in 2017 and is the current President. He is a lawyer with 
Virgin Hickman. As a family law lawyer, he sees the stressors placed on people 
due to addictions and how close many are to homelessness. He resides in 
Vernon with his partner and two children. 

JULIETTE 
CUNNINGHAM 

Juliette has been a business owner in Downtown Vernon since 1990. She also 
has served her community as a school trustee for 9 years and retired as a 3 

term City Councillor in 2018. She currently is serving as an appointed Board 
member of the Okanagan College Board of Governors serving as Chair, Director 
on the Vantage One Credit Union Board and Chair of the ESG committee, 

Director on the Turning Points Collaborative Board. She currently is also a 
volunteer with ESS – Vernon having recently helped victims of the 2021 White 
Rock Fire and Merritt floods. Her past experience includes Vice-Chair Regional 

District of the North Okanagan, Chair of Greater Vernon Advisory Committee, 
Vice-Chair of Okanagan Basin Water Board. Her passion for social justice, 
homelessness and affordable housing has seen her involved with many non-
profits including the Women’s Centre, Partners in Action, Immigration 

Partnership, Seniors Action Network, and Turning Points Collaborative. What 
keeps her motivated is her belief that everyone should have a roof over their 
head and a safe place they can call home. 

MEGAN 
DESIMONE 

Megan has a Bachelor and Master’s degree in social work from UBC and over 
23 years working with people experiencing addictions, trauma, homelessness 
and mental health issues in a variety of health care, community, and social 
service settings. She is currently the founder and lead psychotherapist at The 
Life Balance Counselling Services and a proud member of the Trauma 
Counselling Team at Dr. Gordon Davidson Operational Stress & Recovery 
Program. Prior to this, she was the Clinical Supervisor and Instructor with UBC 
Okanagan School of Social Work at the Interdisciplinary Mental Health Clinic 
and the Interior Health Clinical Operations Manager for Mental Health and 
Substance Use Services in the North Okanagan. Megan joined the board of 
directors in 2015 when the organization was John Howard Society of the North 
Okanagan.  She lives works and plays with her partner, two children, two cats, 
one dog and four chickens in Vernon, located in the unceded territory of the 
Syilx/Okanagan people. 

LINDA CROSS In her early career, Linda worked as a youth worker, probation officer and 
family court counsellor. She was a senior counsellor at Howard House, a 
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transition residence and halfway house for men on conditional release. 
Subsequently, Linda has been an adjudicator for many years, making decisions 
for the B.C. Residential Tenancy Office, Employment and Assistance Appeal 
Tribunal, and more recently the Parole Board of Canada. Currently, she is 
appointed as a board member under the B.C. Mental Health Act. She has 
taught community college courses in sociology, criminology, and business 
administration. She previously served as a volunteer for the Vernon Jubilee 
Hospital Bioethics Committee, as well as Vernon Ringette, and the Okanagan 
Youth Symphony Society. Linda joined the Turning Points Collaborative Society 
Board in June 2020. 

CLINT 
KANESTER 

Clint Kanester retired from the City of Vernon in 2017 after 40 years of service.  
In his role as the Manager of Protective Services (Bylaw 

Compliance/Community Policing) he collaborated and partnered with social 
service providers to provide for a safer community and to better serve 
clientele in need.  Family, hiking, camping, gardening and cooking are Clint’s 
passions. 

NICOLA 
HODELET 

Nicola hails from Scotland, where she attended medical school, following 
which she trained as a psychiatrist. She loves BC and decided to move here 
over ten years ago. She feels immensely privileged to live, work, and play on 
the traditional unceded territory of the Syilx Peoples. She has worked in 
various roles for local health authorities and through that work has gained a 
huge respect for the services aimed at supporting the most vulnerable in 
society, and an understanding of how much work remains. 

AMANDA 
POTTER 

Amanda is a Chartered Professional Accountant who thrives on challenges and 
the opportunity to make a difference with 8+ years of professional experience 
working at KPMG in Vernon. During this time, she has worked with a wide 

range of clients and industries, including not-for-profits. Her specialties include 
financial reporting, compliance and tax planning. She currently serves on the 
Turning Points Board as the Treasurer. 

Amanda was born and raised in Vernon, and is in the process of building her 
dream home with her husband where she will live with her little family, 
consisting of two Boston Terriers and a cat. In her spare time, she teaches 
fitness classes, loves to cook for friends and family, or can be found enjoying 
all that the Okanagan lifestyle has to offer. 

CATHERINE 
LORD 

Catherine is a past two-term city of Vernon Councillor. She is a CPA, was the 
Deputy Treasurer for the City for 17 years and the Director of Finance for the 
District of Coldstream from 2004 to 2009. She is passionate about her 
community and has served on a number of local boards, including the 
Women’s Transition House (renamed the Archway Society for Domestic 

Peace), Ribbons of Green and the Community Foundation of the North 
Okanagan. Since retiring, she has taken on the challenge of projects that 
improve the lives of seniors. She is an Action Team leader with the Vernon 
Seniors Action Network and in that capacity is working with the City of Vernon 
for Age/Dementia Friendly Community designation. 
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BRAD CASE Brad was born and raised in Enderby, and still calls it home. Brad has served on 
many boards and organizations over the years along with being a 5-term city 
councilor. He is involved and passionate about the community. Brad sees the 
stress on community members who suffer from addictions and the lack of the 
basic needs of life. “Being able to help support an organization like Turning 
Points is as important to our community as it is to the entire region. 
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List of Members of the Executive 
Detailed List of Executive Team & Their Background: https://turningpoints.ngo/who-we-
are/executive-team  

 

RANDENE WEJR – CEO  
Email: Randene.Wejr@turningpoints.ngo 
Phone: 250-542-3555 #206 
 

KELLY FEHR – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS 
Email: Kelly.fehr@turningpoints.ngo  
Phone: 250-542-3555 #202   
 

LISA CHURCH – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
Email: Lisa.Church@turningpoints.ngo  
Phone: 250-542-3555 #209 
 
BRAD HOUGHTON – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF ADDICTION SERVICES 
Email: brad.houghton@turningpoints.ngo  
Phone: 250-542-3555 #203               
 
MICHELE TEPPER – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
Email: michele.tepper@turningpoints.ngo  
Phone: 250-542-3555 #201               
 
TARA TSCHRITTER – REGIONAL DIRECTOR OF THE SOUTHERN INTERIOR 
Email: Tara.Tschritter@turningpoints.ngo 
Phone: 250-575-9331  
 
LAURIE CASE – EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNICATIONS 
Email: laurie.case@turningpoints.ngo  
Phone: 604-839-9870   
 
BETTY LEE – EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT 
Email: Betty.Longstaff@turningpoints.ngo 
Phone: 250-309-2881   
 
BRANDY MELLOWS – DIRECTOR OF OUTREACH & HOUSING SUPPORTS 
Email: brandy.mellows@turningpoints.ngo  
Phone: 250-241-0025 
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Minutes 
Annual General Meeting: Board of Directors – Turning Points Collaborative Society 
Location: #102 3301 24 Ave, Vernon, B.C. and via Teams 
Date: Thursday, Sept 14, 2023    6:00 pm 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Present:  

  
Online:  
Staff:  
 

1. Call Annual General Meeting to Order  6:12pm 
  

2. Chair’s Opening Remarks and Introductions  
  

3. Agenda and Minutes of the 2022/23 AGM  
Approval of the agenda; and Minutes of the Sept 8, 
2022 Annual General Meeting. 

THAT the Agenda be adopted as circulated; 
AND FURTHER, that the minutes of September 8, 
2022, 2021/2022 Annual General Board Meeting 
be adopted as circulated;  
Moved by  , seconded by  

 - Carried 
4. Auditors Report  

Auditor’s Report for year ending March 31, 2023 
presented by Chris Mihalcheon, BDO 
 
Appointment of the Auditors for 2023/2024 

THAT the Board receive the Auditor’s Report. 
Moved by , seconded by  

  - Carried 
 
THAT the Board appoint the auditors for the 
2023/2024 fiscal year. 
Moved by , seconded by  

  - Carried 
5. Reports   

Impact Report 
• President’s Report – Pg. 3 
• CEO’s Report – Pg. 3 

THAT the Board receive the President’s, CEO’s 
and Impact Reports for information. 
Moved by , seconded by  

  - Carried 
6. Adjourn Meeting 6:47pm 

Adjournment  THAT the Board adjourn the meeting. 
Moved by , seconded by   
- Carried 
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OUR MISSION AND MANDATE

To achieve safe and sustainable housing in our communities by providing a continuum of housing,
promoting health, and offering community outreach, employment and addiction services.




Building Community; Strengthening People

Turning Points, without them I don’t
know what I would have done.  They
gave me a chance for housing, work,
and health.  They gave me peace.
The future looks amazing.  Honestly, it
really does.

TURNING POINTS CLLIENT

We value ‘Heart Centered Leadership’ which
supports our team’s ability to build powerful
relationships by being kind, caring, and
courageous.


We believe that housing is a basic human right. 


We believe that every person has the right to be
treated with dignity, equity, fairness, and
compassion without discrimination. 


We value collaboration as a core practice to
achieving our goals.


We value safety, wellness, and a sense 
of wellbeing for our community, 
clients, and staff.







To provide safe and supportive housing alternatives
that meet the needs of people who are homeless, at
risk of being homeless or who are marginally housed.


To promote the health and safety of our community
through social development and public education
activities.


To build and deliver programs and services to
strengthen life skills and provide opportunities for
people in need.


To develop and deliver programs and resources that
provide a continuum of recovery services.





VALUES MANDATE

MISSION

If you’ve never experienced homelessness, it’s
almost impossible to describe... that feeling of
not having a roof over your head and the
wear and tear on your very soul.  
Turning Points is the only program that I’ve
found in over ten years that actually helped
me.  This place is like I died and went to
heaven.   A TURNING POINTS CLIENT UPON 

SECURING PERMANENT HOUSING

Home is like a real big first step to be
able to  start getting well again.  To
have a spot you can come back to and
know that you’re going to be safe and
warm and that there are people there
that are willing to help you...I am so
grateful for Turning Points.

TURNING POINTS CLLIENT
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CEO, RANDENE WEJR


Despite coming out of our Covid era, we continue to
see significant financial and health impacts that
were magnified during this time. Our waitlists for
housing and addiction services both continue to
grow; housing affordability is becoming more and
more difficult to find; seniors and families continue
to be the fastest growing groups who are
precariously housed or homeless.


Turning Points Collaborative continues to respond
to these ongoing challenges by prioritizing shelter
diversion, scattered site housing and growth in
supportive and affordable housing stock. We
opened the 52 bed Crossings supportive housing
site in Vernon, added an affordable family housing
complex in Vernon and increased our addiction
services continuum. Responding to the growing
demand for sober living, TPCS opened up a vacant
site to provide that service.


Our incredible staff make these changes possible
for the people who use our services.  They have
shown tremendous leadership in our sector, with
TPCS winning Employer of the Year at the Greater
Vernon Chamber of Commerce Business
Excellence Awards.


The important work we do is only possible due to
the generosity of our staff, our funders, the
communities in which we work, and from the
guidance of our Board of Directors. Thank you,
thank you, thank you.









OUR COMMITMENT
BOARD PRESIDENT, KEVIN ROBERTSON


During the last year at Turning Points, we’ve seen
significant expansion and operational growth.
This has led to new housing and increased
services being available while taking on
significant operational reviews and
organizational planning. Management have deftly
executed the course charted by the strategic
goals, while our staff continue to be the
backbone of all the good our organization does
to assist clients during their most difficult times.  
The board sends out a huge thank you to
management and staff for the tremendous work
that was done over the last year.
 
The organization continues to provide a diverse
set of services to our, unfortunately, growing
clientele. The challenges faced by our clients
include the housing crises and opioid epidemic.
The organization continues to work cooperatively
with aligned organizations.
 
Turning Points remains in a healthy position and
is prepared to take on future challenges.
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OUR CONTINUUM of care
36 PROGRAMS

OUTREACH

SHELTER

HOUSING

ADDICTIONS
RECOVERY
EMPLOYMENT
SERVICES

Our outreach programs seek to reach individuals and families who are
homeless or experiencing housing insecurity.  We also provide
programming to assist in improving the health and well-being of individuals
experiencing homelessness. 

Our shelter services provide temporary housing for people who are
homeless or experiencing housing instability. While in shelter, clients have
access to case planning, referrals, laundry, showers, and meal services 24
hours a day, 7 days a week.

Our housing programs and sites include an innovative rapid re-housing
program, a scattered sites model, and several supportive housing and
affordable housing sites throughout Enderby, Vernon, Kelowna, and 
West Kelowna.

Our addictions recovery program is a sober living community which offers
a safe place for individuals to embark on the path of addiction recovery.
The programs are based on the bio/psycho/social model and 12-Step
model of recovery and include support groups and group therapy.

Our employment services programming is a partnership with Community
Futures of the North Okanagan.  Together we deliver WorkBC one-to-one
employment services to clients who are facing multiple barriers to
employment.



26 SITES
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outreach

SHELTER
DIVERTED FROM SHELTER 
34 INDIVIDUALS

100

CAMMY LAFLEUR CLINIC - Vernon
HOMELESS OUTREACH & PREVENTION - Vernon
HOMELESS CRISIS INTERVENTION TEAM - Vernon
WEST KELOWNA OUTREACH  - West Kelowna
SUBSTANCE USE NAVIGATOR - Vernon
CLIENT CARE AND COMMUNITY SUPPORTOur outreach programs work to meet individuals where

they are at. In Vernon this includes through street
outreach, the Cammy Lafleur clinic, community support
workers, substance use navigator, shelter, and housing
programs. The team has been able to support the
community by offering important programs such as peer
wellness events, and trainings in substance use disorder,
naloxone, safe talk, and needle poke prevention. 


In West Kelowna a variety of outreach programming has
helped divert numerous individuals from the over-
burdened shelter system, while supporting others to
maintain their housing through regular home visits,
community referrals, parent referrals, senior’s outreach,
indigenous supports, peer programs and much more. 


Our outreach programs are in high demand and
consistently experience wait lists. 





AMALGAMATED SHELTER - Vernon - 60 BEDS
RICHTER ST. SHELTER - West Kelowna - 51 BEDS
BARTLEY ROAD SHELTER - West Kelowna - 38 BEDS
  

42%
OF VERNON'S HOMELESS HAVE BEEN
IN THE COMMUNITY
FOR MORE THAN 10 YEARS 

- 2021 HOMELESS COUNT-

CLIENTS
IN VERNON
PER MONTH

IN WEST KELOWNA 

The demand for shelter in Vernon, Kelowna, and West Kelowna remains
high and continues to grow. This past year Vernon's Amalgamated
Shelter supported over 24,500 overnight stays. In Kelowna, Richter
Street Shelter served 377 unique clients and West Kelowna's Bartley
Court served 131.


We continue to employ the shelter diversion methodology which has
helped relieve some of the pressure on the shelter system. The goal of
this process is to divert clients away from the overburdened shelter
system and towards housing opportunities with people they know.  


Our staff provide referrals, on-site clinics, peer support, and case
management. In Kelowna, they created the Shelter Discharge Committee
to ensure appropriate intake for clients discharged from the hospital. 
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housing 350
INDIVIDUALS ON THE 
WAITING LIST

affordable housing

supportive housing

rapid re-housing

BLAIR APARTMENTS - Vernon - 39 UNITS 
PIVOT HOUSING - Vernon - 42 UNITS 
HILLSIDE APARTMENTS - Enderby - 19 UNITS 
CEDAR PARK - Enderby - 10 UNITS 
PIONEER PLACE - Enderby - 24 UNITS 
MOTEL PROGRAM - Vernon - 40 UNITS



MY PLACE - Vernon - 52 UNITS
THE CROSSINGS - Vernon- 52 UNITS 
POLSON - Vernon - 29 UNITS 
 

OUR PLACE - Vernon - 26 UNITS
SUPER 8- West Kelowna - 30 UNITS 







Adding affordable housing stock to our
continuum has been a key focus of the
organization this year. We now have 174 units
of affordable housing in the communities of
Vernon and Enderby.


This program is vital to the housing continuum,
providing essential spaces for our clients
completing residential treatment at Bill’s Place,
and for others moving from rapid re-housing or
supportive housing. Through our full time
affordable housing manager, we offer support
and referrals which helps tenants live
independently and successfully maintain
permanent housing.
  
The demand for additional affordable housing
stock remains high as we currently have 350
names on our waiting list.



The Rapid Re-Housing Program swiftly
transitions individuals from low barrier shelters
or the streets, preventing them from becoming
entrenched in homelessness. Our skilled case
managers are dedicated to helping participants
find long-term housing that will ultimately end
their experience with homelessness.


This program provides targeted intervention,
efficient staffing, reduced facility expenses, and
decreased strain on public services.  In West
Kelowna, of the 93 people we served, 59 have
gone on to permanent housing or long-term
residential treatment programs. 







The Crossings opened its doors in December
2022. This long-awaited supportive housing
facility is a twin to My Place, offering an
additional 52 essential supportive housing
spaces to our community.  In addition, The
Polson Motel was permanently added to our
supportive housing stock, offering 29 additional
units.  Our supportive housing sites have zero
vacancies.

FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN VERNON 
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350
BILL'S PLACE RECEIVED OVER 

REFERRALS FOR SERVICE



BILL'S PLACE - Vernon - 19 SPACES 
HAVEN PLACE - Vernon - 8 SPACES 
 







The addiction recovery program at Bill’s Place saw 68 clients
begin their recovery journey this past year. The success of this
program is well-known, which has driven demand for our
services. This demand is also driven by the on-going toxic drug
crisis in B.C. According to the BC Coroner Service, “at least
2,272 British Columbians lost their lives to toxic drugs in 2022.”


Individuals who complete our program have been very
successful in moving on to independent living and finding
employment. With over 45 people currently on the waiting list
for Bill’s Place, we continue to look for ways to increase
services, including by increasing the facilitation of our family
program AWARE.



ADDICTIONS RECOVERY

EMPLOYMENT SERVICES
In partnership with Community Futures of the North Okanagan, Turning Points
delivers WorkBC one-to-one employment services to clients facing multiple
barriers to employment.  This year we had a 27% increase in clients seeking
our service with 70 new intakes, compared to 55 the previous year.


Turning Points’ WorkBC program provides specialized support for people who
are experiencing homelessness, substance use disorder, mental health
challenges, and/or multiple barriers to employment.  This free services include
access to job search resources, resume and cover letter support, case
management, customized employment job search, workshops, personal
counseling services for employment readiness, and ongoing follow-up.





44%
OF CLIENTS ACHIEVED 
SUCCESSFUL EMPLOYMENT
CATCHMENT AVERAGE IN THE NORTH OKANAGAN IS 49% 

THE CURRENT WAITING LIST FOR SERVICE IS
OVER 7 WEEKS LONG
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External Committees:
Vernon:

Association of Fundraising Professionals
BC Addiction Recovery Association

CAC - Provincial Supportive Recovery Services
Complex Care Steering Committee

Interior Social Profit Housing Planning Committee
Chamber of Commerce - Advocacy
Collaborative Interior Health/TPCS

COOL Team (multi-disciplinary/agency outreach)
Community Connections

Coordinated Access Table
Downtown Vernon Association

Emergency Food Action Network
Good Food Box

HART (Provincial Health)
Homelessness Memorial, Coordination Committee

HOPE outreach
Interior Coalition of Shelter Professionals

Kalamalka Rotary
Okanagan College Advisory Committee
Overdose Awareness Day Committee

Parners in Action (City of Vernon)
Pacific Aids Network

Perinatal Substance Use Team
Sexual Assault Services Committee

ShareED Committee
Social Planning Council of North Okanagan



Kelowna/West Kelowna:
Built for Zero Kelwona

Community Outreach Table
Community Advisory Committee

Coordinated Access Table
Kelowna Shelter Table

Hospital to Shelter Discharge Committee
Pardon Me Hearing Clinics

Hep C Point-of-Care Testing/Specialty Health Clinic 



Enderby:
Interagency Committee






COMMUNITY EDUCATION & AWARENESS
Our community education and awareness efforts
are important to the continued success of the
organization. We collaborate with community
stakeholders, health care providers, other non-
profits, media, educators, businesses and local
governments to advocate for change, raise
awareness about the social issues that impact
our community, educate the general public, and
reduce the stigma associated with homelessness
and substance misuse. 


Our team participates on various committees
about issues related to the drug poisoning crisis
and homelessness. They facilitate training on
non-violent crisis intervention, substance use
disorder and Naloxone administration for new
staff, peers, security firms, non-profits, colleges,
practicum students, clients and family members. 


As a leader in the sector, we welcome
opportunities to share our knowledge of best
practices and to collaborate for the betterment of
our community. 













The PEERS programs provide peer-based
support for our clients. PEERS also offer
community awareness through regular
participation in workshops, committees

and community activities.



Our Social Enterprise, Howard Industries
continues to provide work experience such
as through donation pickup and delivery,
janitorial services, yard maintenance and

interior painting. 
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In 2022, Turning Points adopted a new strategic plan.  The previous plan saw Turning Points through a
significant period of growth and achievement, and provided a solid foundation for the organization’s next four
year term.  This year’s planning session included members of the board of directors and executive leadership
team, and resulted in a comprehensive plan to guide us in effectively meeting the needs of our community while
aligning with our core values.


The strategic plan focuses on five key goal areas.  These are some of the key focus areas and highlights of the
past year:



OUR STRATEGIC PLAN

Our areas of focus include planning and coordinating new housing initiatives,
enhancing our existing partner relationships, and expanding environmental
programs. We opened The Crossings Supportive Housing in Vernon and
assumed operations of The Village Affordable Housing in Kelowna (Mar/23). 

SUPPORT COMMUNITY
housing STRATEGIES

EXPAND COMMUNITY 
EDUCATION & AWARENESS

DIVERSIFY 
REVENUE STREAM

GROWTH
MANAGEMENT

ENHANCE CONTINUUM
OF CARE

We focus on promoting our organizational values through routine stakeholder
engagement, providing social awareness through social media, traditional
media, and by participating in community events and activities. We also
participate in targeted advocacy to government leadership. 

We are creating positive revenue streams through the hiring of a fund
development coordinator and by hosting some of our own fundraising
activities. Our first Comedy For Community event raised $60,000 for the
Southern Interior Scattered Site Program. 

We are prioritizing recruitment and focusing heavily on retention efforts. Key
initiatives have been job fairs, online orientations, on-going staff training,
flexible return-to-work options, flexible schedules for non-residential program
staff, and mentorship opportunities for internal leadership candidates.

Our key focus has been on standardizing client programs, identifying service
gaps, improving service options, and training staff in innovative service
provision. Some highlights include: shelter diversion and safe-talk training for
staff, an extreme weather response plan, and a warming bus program.



FC Meeting - May 28, 2024 Page 282 of 375



BC
Housing

82%

Room and
Board

7%

Grant
s

3%

Comm.
Futures

2%

REVENUES

Wages and
Benefits

65%

Client
Support

19%

Insurance and
Admin

9%
Utilities and

Maint
7%

EXPENDITURES

OUR STEWARDSHIP
Turning Points Collaborative Society continued to experience growth in 2022/23 with revenues increasing 21%
over the prior fiscal year.    Most of this increase was attributable to the opening of The Crossings, a new 52 bed
supportive housing complex in Vernon, BC.


Financial Report 2022-2023 Controller Michele Tepper 



Wages and Benefits
65%

Grants
3%

Comm. Futures
2%

IH
2%

Donations
2% Other

2%

FUNDRAISING
In February we hired a full-time fund development coordinator. Within the first few months of this hiring, TPCS
was able to apply for several significant fund opportunities from foundations, as well as federal, provincial and
community sources. By the end of our fiscal in March 2023, we were awarded $94,468 by BC Housing from their
Housing Provider Information Technology Grant. This grant allows us to upgrade certain outdated hardware,
while simultaneously improving data privacy and security features throughout our sites and programs.


Grant applications and donor stewardship will be a key focus for the next fiscal year, with a goal of diversifying
the overall revenue stream.
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WE THANK YOU

...at every moment, one of you were there in
one way or another to do anything in your
power to go over and above to see me move
forward... thank you from the bottom of my
heart for sticking it out with me.

TURNING POINTS CLIENT UPON 
SECURING PERMANENT HOUSING

 The City of West Kelowna continues to be
impressed with the work that Turning Points
is doing to support our community’s most
vulnerable individuals. Their collaboration
with other non-profits and funders has been
wonderful to witness, and we are thankful for
their arrival in our city. 

CITY OF WEST KELOWNA

OUR PROGRAMS
FOR YOUR CONTINUED SUPPORT OF 

2022
WINNER

BY THE GREATER VERNON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
BUSINESS EXCELLENCE AWARDS

EMPLOYER
OF THE YEAR

TPCS has excellent relationships
with the community of Vernon and
provides strong leadership, working
to achieve a healthy and
sustainable community. 

SOCIAL PLANNING COUNCIL FOR THE NORTH OKANAGAN 
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
102 - 3301 24th Avenue
Vernon, B.C. V1T 9S8

250.542.3555
www.turningpoints.ngo
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Tel: 250 545 2136
Fax: 250 545 3364
www.bdo.ca

BDO Canada LLP
2706 30th Avenue, Suite 202
Vernon, BC  V1T 2B6

 Independent Auditor's Report

To the board of directors of Turning Points Collaborative Society

Report on the Non-consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the non-consolidated financial statements of Turning Points Collaborative
Society (the Society), which comprise the non-consolidated statement of financial position as at
March 31, 2023,  the non-consolidated statements of changes in net assets, operations and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the non-consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying non-consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the non-consolidated financial position of the Society as at March 31, 2023,
and its non-consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Non-consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Society in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the non-consolidated financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Non-consolidated
Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the non-consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of non-consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the non-consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Society’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Society or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Society’s financial reporting
process.

1

BDO Canada LLP, a Canadian limited liability partnership, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms part of the
international BDO network of independent member firms.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Non-consolidated Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these non-consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the non-consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Society’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Society’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
non-consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Society to cease
to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the non-consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the non-consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

2
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Societies Act (British Columbia), we report that, in our opinion, the accounting
principles in Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organization have been applied, on
a basis consistent with that of the preceding year.

Chartered Professional Accountants

Vernon, British Columbia
July 26, 2023

3
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Non-consolidated Statement of Financial Position

March 31 2023 2022

Assets

Current
Cash $ 1,907,563 $ 1,643,461
Investments (Note 2) 300,000 300,000
Accounts receivable 1,299,587 1,216,127
Inventories 36,956 42,383
Prepaid expenses 33,692 12,918

3,577,798 3,214,889

Capital assets (Note 4) 9,756,704 9,832,160
Controlled entities (Note 5) 10 10
Restricted Cash (Note 3) 275,425 199,345

$13,609,937 $ 13,246,404

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 6) $ 2,261,608 $ 1,058,769
Customer deposits 54,746 47,708
Deferred contributions (Note 7) 324,987 1,401,661
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8) 119,328 114,900

2,760,669 2,623,038

Long-term debt (Note 8) 4,495,192 4,615,513
Deferred contributions for capital assets (Note 9) 2,163,186 2,210,140

9,419,047 9,448,691

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets 3,016,067 2,897,848
Externally restricted (Note 10) 489,563 413,483
Internally restricted (Note 11) 85,862 85,862
Unrestricted 599,398 400,520

4,190,890 3,797,713

$13,609,937 $ 13,246,404

 On behalf of the Board:

Director Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these non-consolidated financial statements.

4
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Non-consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended March 31

Invested in
Capital
Assets

Externally
Restricted

Internally
Restricted Unrestricted

2023
Total

2022
Total

Balance, beginning of the year $ 2,897,848 $ 413,483 $ 85,862 $ 400,520 $ 3,797,713 $ 2,774,234
Excess (deficit) of revenues over

expenses (94,249) - - 487,426 393,177 399,479
Purchase of capital assets 96,575 - - (96,575) - -
Long-term debt repayments 115,893 - - (115,893) - -
Contribution of land - - - - - 624,000
Replacement reserve - 76,080 - (76,080) - -

Balance, end of the year $ 3,016,067 $ 489,563 $ 85,862 $ 599,398 $ 4,190,890 $ 3,797,713

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these non-consolidated financial statements.

5
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Non-consolidated Statement of Operations

For the year ended March 31 2023 2022

Revenue
BC Housing $14,386,930 $ 11,498,402
Client room and board 1,225,968 995,182
Interior health authority 357,916 485,217
City of Vernon 383,787 296,081
Community futures 280,059 238,290
Canadian mental health association 193,157 213,852
Ministry of housing and social development 184,816 90,202
Other 266,918 151,381
Donations 124,771 464,053
Interest 5,391 4,418
Amortization of deferred contributions (Note 9) 46,954 32,472

17,456,667 14,469,550

Expenses
Amortization 172,031 128,815
Client support 528,641 442,010
Food 1,255,293 1,141,589
Housing outreach program 340,614 413,714
Insurance 154,683 97,425
Interest on long-term debt 135,106 89,201
Office expenses 213,506 55,367
Professional fees 238,289 238,411
Property taxes 21,273 21,421
Repairs and maintenance 502,364 333,664
Security 990,704 1,269,825
Supplies 457,008 448,886
Telephone 66,675 47,201
Travel and automotive 136,147 76,150
Utilities 707,264 509,239
Wages and benefits 11,143,892 8,757,153

17,063,490 14,070,071

Excess of revenues over expenses $ 393,177 $ 399,479

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these non-consolidated financial statements.

6
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Non-consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended March 31 2023 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers $16,251,226 $ 13,912,512
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (15,568,861) (14,118,353)
Interest received 5,391 4,418
Interest paid (135,106) (89,201)

552,650 (290,624)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (455,000) (300,000)
Proceeds on maturity of investments 455,000 455,000
Purchase of capital assets (96,575) (5,084,113)
Capital contributions - 2,197,000

(96,575) (2,732,113)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term debt - 2,564,450
Repayment of long-term debt (115,893) (78,238)

(115,893) 2,486,212

Net increase (decrease) in cash 340,182 (536,525)

Cash, beginning of the year 1,842,806 2,379,331

Cash, end of the year $ 2,182,988 $ 1,842,806

Represented by:
Cash $ 1,907,563 $ 1,643,461
Restricted cash 275,425 199,345

$ 2,182,988 $ 1,842,806

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these non-consolidated financial statements.

7
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Notes to Non-consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2023

1. Significant Accounting Policies

Nature and Purpose of
Organization

The Turning Points Collaborative Society ("Society") is incorporated
under the laws of the British Columbia Societies Act and is engaged
to provide housing and rehabilitative programs of living skills,
employment and counselling for marginalized men and women. 

The Society is a registered charity and, as such, is exempt from
income tax and may issue income tax receipts to donors.

Basis of Accounting The financial statements have been prepared using Canadian
accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from management's best estimates as additional information
becomes available.

Financial Instruments Financial instruments are recorded at fair value at initial
recognition.  

In subsequent periods, equities traded in an active market and
derivatives are reported at fair value, with any change in fair
value reported in income.  All other financial instruments are
reported at cost or amortized cost less impairment.  Transaction
costs on the acquisition, sale or issue of financial instruments are
expensed for those items measured at fair value and charged to
the financial instrument for those measured at amortized cost.

Financial assets are tested for impairment when indicators of
impairment exist.  When a significant change in the expected
timing or amount of the future cash flows of the financial asset is
identified, the carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
and the amount of the write-down is recognized in net income.  A
previously recognized impairment loss may be reversed to the
extent of the improvement, provided it is not greater than the
amount that would have been reported at the date of the reversal
had the impairment not been recognized previously, and the
amount of the reversal is recognized in net income.

Cash Cash consists of cash on hand and bank balances. 

8
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Notes to Non-consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2023

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue Recognition The Society follows the deferral method of accounting for
contributions. 

Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in
which the related expenses are incurred.  Unrestricted
contributions are recognized as revenue when received or
receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured.  

Contract revenue from the Interior Health Authority and client
room and board is recognized over the term of the related
contract or lease.

Rental revenue is recognized as revenue when the period in which
the rent was earned is received. 

Interest and other income is recognized on an accrual basis when
the amounts can be estimated and collection is reasonably
assured.

Contributed Services Volunteers contribute many hours per year to assist the Society in
carrying out its activities.  Due to the difficulty of determining
their fair value, contributed services are not recognized in the
financial statements.

Contributed Materials Due to the difficulty in determining the fair value of materials
contributed to the Society they are not recognized in the financial
statements.

9
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Notes to Non-consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2023

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Capital Assets Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization.
Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of
contribution and are amortized, unless fair value is not
determinable in which case contributed capital assets are recorded
at nominal value at the date of contribution.  Expenditures for
repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.  Betterments
that extend the useful life of the tangible capital asset are
capitalized.

Amortization based on the estimated useful life of the asset is
calculated as follows:

Method Rate
Buildings Declining balance 50 years
Building improvements Declining balance 20 years
Furniture and fixtures Declining balance 7 years
Automotive equipment Declining balance 5 years

When a tangible capital asset no longer contributes to an Society’s
ability to provide goods and services, or the future economic
benefits or service potential of the tangible capital asset is less
than its carrying value, the excess of its net carrying amount over
its fair value or replacement cost is recognized as an expense in
the statement of operations.  Any unamortized deferred
contribution amount related to the tangible capital asset is
recognized in revenue in the statement of operations, provided
that all restrictions have been complied with.

When a tangible capital asset is disposed of, the difference
between the net proceeds on disposition and the net carrying
amount is recognized in the statement of operations.  Any
unamortized deferred contribution amount related to the tangible
capital asset disposed of is recognized in revenue in the statement
of operations, provided that all restrictions have been complied
with. 

Controlled Entities Controlled not-for-profit organizations are not consolidated in the
Society’s financial statements.  Instead disclosure is provided.

Controlled profit-oriented enterprises are accounted for by the
equity method in the Society’s financial statements. The Society
controls Howard Industries (2010) Ltd., through common control.
Howard Industries (2010) Ltd. provides payroll support services to
the Society.

10
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Notes to Non-consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2023

1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Employee Future Benefits The Society provides pension benefits to its employees through the
Municipal Pension Plan of British Columbia. The plan is a multi-
employer contributory, defined contribution pension plan. Pension
cost is recorded as part of employee salary, wages and employee
benefits and is comprised of the amount of employer and
employee contributions required for the employees over the year,
based on rates that are expected to provide benefits payable
under the plan.

11
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Notes to Non-consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2023

2. Investments

The carrying amounts of investments are comprised of the following:

2023 2022

At amortized cost:
Guaranteed investment certificates, bearing interest at

2.25%, maturing May 2023 $ 300,000 $ 300,000

Investments are allocated as follows:
Current $ 300,000 $ 300,000

Investments are allocated as follows:
Restricted $ 300,000 $ 300,000

3. Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and investments consists of cash and investments in guaranteed investment
certificates which are restricted in their use and can only be used for specific purposes.

2023 2022

Cash $ 275,425 $ 199,345
Investments 300,000 300,000

$ 575,425 $ 499,345

Restricted cash and investments is allocated for the following purposes:
2023 2022

Externally restricted funds (Note 11) $ 489,563 $ 413,483
Internally restricted funds (Note 10) 85,862 85,862

$ 575,425 $ 499,345

12
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Notes to Non-consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2023

4. Capital Assets

2023 2022

Cost
Accumulated
Amortization Cost

Accumulated
Amortization

Land $ 3,080,139 $ - $ 3,080,139 $ -
Buildings 6,898,820 469,513 6,898,820 338,304
Building improvements 47,611 16,204 47,611 14,551
Furniture and fixtures 190,175 158,160 190,175 152,879
Automotive 281,571 97,735 184,996 63,847

10,498,316 741,612 10,401,741 569,581

$ 9,756,704 $ 9,832,160

13
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Notes to Non-consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2023

5. Controlled Entities

The Society controls Howard Industries (2010) Ltd., a company under common control, which
provides payroll support services on behalf of the Society.

The financial summary of unconsolidated Howard Industries (2010) Ltd. as at June 30, 2022 for
the year then ended as provided:

Financial Position

2022 2021

Total assets $ 125,124 $ 175,916

Total liabilities 135,461 146,689
Total shareholder's equity (10,337) 29,227

$ 125,124 $ 175,916

Results of Operations

2022 2021

Total revenues $ - $ 532,945
Total expenses (39,565) (536,044)

Net income $ (39,565) $ (3,099)

During the year the Society paid $131,462 (2022 - $100,000) for payroll support services to
Howard Industries (2010) Ltd. The above payments were made in the normal course of
operations and recorded at the exchange amount, being the amount agreed to by both parties.

As at March 31, 2023, the Society has a balance receivable from Howard Industries (2010) Ltd. of
$84,439 (2022 - $84,439), and a balance payable to Howard Industries (2010) Ltd. of $104,643
(2022 - $107,800).

The Society owns 100% of the shares of 1098385 BC Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary. This  company
is not active and as a result, the carrying value of the investment in this subsidiary represents the
Society's initial investment of $10. 

6. Government Remittances

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are government remittances payable of
$254,508 (2022 - $133,051).
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Notes to Non-consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2023

7. Deferred Contributions

Deferred contributions represent unspent resources externally restricted operating funding
received in the current period that is related to expenses of a subsequent period.  Changes in the
deferred contributions balance are as follows:

 Balance,
beginning

Contributions
received

Amounts
recognized to

revenue
Balance,

ending

BC Housing $ 1,209,691 $ 355,801 $ (1,310,616) $ 254,876
Grants 180,759 295,953 (447,253) 29,459
Other 11,211 55,880 (26,439) 40,652

$ 1,401,661 $ 707,634 $ (1,784,308) $ 324,987
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Notes to Non-consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2023

8. Long-Term Debt

2023 2022

Vantage One Credit Union mortgage payable at $10,554
per month including interest 2.90% per annum, due
February 2026, secured by land and building with a
net book value of $2,961,332 $ 2,117,872 $ 2,182,078

Vantage One Credit Union mortgage payable at $3,702
per month including interest 3.60% per annum, due
August 2026, secured by land and building with a net
book value of $1,019,888 702,009 720,788

MCAP mortgage payable at $6,617 per month including
interest 2.5790% per annum, due January 2032,
secured by land and building with a net book value
of $1,823,007 1,794,639 1,827,547

4,614,520 4,730,413
Less: Current portion (119,328) (114,900)

$ 4,495,192 $ 4,615,513

Principal repayments over the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2024 $ 119,328
2025 122,860
2026 2,040,213
2027 677,878
2028 37,406
Thereafter 1,616,835

$ 4,614,520
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Notes to Non-consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2023

9. Deferred Contributions Related to Capital Assets

Deferred contributions related to capital assets represent the unamortized portion of contributed
capital assets and restricted contributions used to purchase capital assets.  The changes in the
deferred contributions balance for the period are as follows:

2023 2022

Balance, beginning $ 2,210,140 $ 669,612
Add: donated capital assets - 1,573,000
Less: amounts amortized to revenue (46,954) (32,472)

Balance, ending $ 2,163,186 $ 2,210,140

10. Externally Restricted

As required by BC Housing, a certain portion of the net assets should be used for programs for the
benefit of the clients of the Society and that are consistent with the goals of agreements with BC
Housing and/or for payments for capital improvements as approved by BC Housing. The reserves
have been maintained as part of the interest bearing guaranteed investment certificates (see
Note 2) and accumulated surplus is being spent in accordance with the terms of the operating
agreement.

11. Internally Restricted

The reserve for building replacement is internally restricted and can only be used with Board
approval.

17
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Notes to Non-consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2023

12. Employee Pension Plan

The Society and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the "Plan"), a jointly
trusteed pension plan. The board of trustees, representing plan members and employers, is
responsible for administering the Plan, including investment of the assets and administration of
benefits. The Plan is a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits
provided are based on a formula. As at December 31, 2021, the Plan had about 227,000 active
members and approximately 118,000 retired members. Active members include approximately
41,000 contributors from local government.

The most recent actuarial valuation as at December 31, 2021, indicated a $3,761 million funding
surplus for basic pension benefits. The next valuation will be December 31, 2024, with results
available in 2025.

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is
because the plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the plan in aggregate, resulting
in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to individual
employers participating in the plan.

The Society paid $397,388 (2022 - $308,976) for employer contributions to the Plan in fiscal 2023.

13. Salaries, Honoraria and Benefits

During the year, the Society paid thirty-three employees (2022 - twelve) in excess of $75,000.
Total salaries, wages and benefits paid was $3,480,535 (2022 - $1,391,435). The Society does not
provide remuneration to its Board of Directors.

14. Economic Dependence

The Society receives 82% (2022 - 79%) of its funding from the Province of British Columbia through
BC Housing. The ability of the Society to continue operations is dependent upon continued funding
from this source.
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Notes to Non-consolidated Financial Statements

March 31, 2023

15. Financial Instruments

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the
other party by failing to discharge an obligation.  The Society is exposed to credit risk resulting
from the possibility that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument defaults on their
financial obligations; if there is a concentration of transactions carried out with the same
counterparty; or of financial obligations which have similar economic characteristics such that
they could be similarly affected by changes in economic conditions.  The Society's financial
instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk relate primarily to its accounts and
contributions receivable. The majority of the Society's receivables are from government sources
and the Society works to ensure it meets all eligibility criteria in order to qualify to receive the
funding. 

There have not been any changes in the risk from the prior year.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Society will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations
associated with financial liabilities.  Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of operational
liquidity requirements, the Society will not have sufficient funds to settle a transaction on the
due date; will be forced to sell financial assets at a value, which is less than what they are worth;
or may be unable to settle or recover a financial asset.  The Society is exposed to this risk mainly
in respect of its accounts payable and current portion of long-term debt.

There have not been any changes in the risk from the prior year.

16. Commitments

The Society has an available letter of credit, to a maximum of $300,000 (2022 - $300,000), from
Vantage One Credit Union which bears interest at a rate to be determined upon withdrawal,
secured by a general security agreement. This letter of credit was not drawn upon during the
year.

17. Comparative Figures

The comparative figures have been reclassified where applicable in order to conform to the
presentation used in the current year.
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Schedule 1 - BC Housing Funded Programs

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Fund Balance by Program
For the year ended March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31 Amalgamated SS Kelowna SS Vernon Gateway Our Place

Revenues
Subsidy $ 3,159,301 $ 413,748 $ 413,748 $ 62,652 $ 714,204
Other revenue - - 10 - -

3,159,301 413,748 413,758 62,652 714,204

Expenses
Building rent - - - - -
Cablevision 2,001 - - 1,957 192
Electricity 18,321 - - 5,251 18,054
Heating fuel 9,116 - - 4,448 2,991
Water & sewer 9,824 - - 1,463 9,753
Meals 166,949 155 - 7 31,649
Miscellaneous hospitality (ESP only) 52,828 - - 436 7,505
Insurance premiums 15,579 - - 3,650 3,420
Waste removal 12,958 - - 1,894 9,565
Administration charge 219,785 22,875 22,875 8,434 72,533
Internet 1,999 - - 2,649 2,164
Telephone 4,415 1,035 443 1,073 2,518
General administration 128,705 7,022 6,900 3,015 45,937
Legal - - - - -
Furniture and equipment 1,522 - 301 - -
Laundry 3,564 298 - 123 -
Audit 1,477 - - 600 1,477
Exterior building maintenance 877 - - 94 792
General maintenance 94,104 - - 23,526 47,052
Grounds maintenance 9,399 - - 85 2,742
Interior building maintenance 11,301 21 623 1,424 3,302
Pest control 1,302 - - 1,488 1,459
Service contracts 239,824 - - 7,686 77,030
Janitorial/cleaning supplies 66,701 - - 639 13,884
Support labour and benefits 2,033,854 53,242 42,004 28 466,478
Education - operating 119 20 130 - 505
Travel - operating (ESP & TH only) 2,528 2,582 186 - 1,473
Motel rooms - 222,098 26,300 - -

3,109,052 309,348 99,762 69,970 822,475

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenses 50,249 104,400 313,996 (7,318) (108,271)

Accumulated fund balance, opening (4,695) - - 22,350 147,351
Surplus allocated - - - - -

Accumulated fund balance, ending $ 45,554 $ 104,400 $ 313,996 $ 15,032 $ 39,080
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Schedule 1 - BC Housing Funded Programs

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Fund Balance by Program
For the year ended March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31 My Place

Blair
Apartments Belair Schell Motel Polson Park

Revenues
Subsidy $ 1,132,524 $ 69,480 $ 264,084 $ 207,831 $ 1,057,500
Tenant rent revenue 231,937 222,874 - - -

1,364,461 292,354 264,084 207,831 1,057,500

Expenses
Building rent - - - - -
Cablevision 13,462 10,873 - - 6,411
Electricity 37,462 34,581 - - 14,968
Heating fuel 19,452 4,566 - - 9,994
Water & sewer 36,463 15,645 - - 16,662
Meals 112,674 175 79,394 64,987 78,551
Miscellaneous hospitality (ESP only) 13,472 1,252 - - 5,750
Insurance premiums 9,926 7,411 7,746 6,096 6,639
Waste removal 14,139 2,994 - - 10,183
Administration charge 69,055 23,623 15,542 15,301 25,029
Internet 1,598 1,517 - - 2,858
Telephone 2,134 2,213 - - 8,764
General administration 70,886 14,420 9,511 12,057 67,222
Legal - - - - -
Furniture and equipment 17,273 - - - -
Laundry - 2,316 - - -
Audit 1,477 1,477 600 600 1,477
Exterior building maintenance 139 - - - 1,454
General maintenance 94,104 19,521 - - 94,104
Grounds maintenance 3,618 6,238 - - 308
Interior building maintenance 24,526 3,877 - - 14,336
Pest control 4,100 1,011 - - 1,133
Service contracts 7,035 3,245 - - 9,417
Janitorial/cleaning supplies 30,477 22 - - 4,419
Support labour and benefits 860,179 98,949 109,489 102,347 606,627
Education - operating 360 - - - -
Travel - operating (ESP & TH only) 2,799 885 - - 9,222
Replacement reserve provision - 28,080 - - -

1,446,810 284,891 222,282 201,388 995,528

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenses (82,349) 7,463 41,802 6,443 61,972

Accumulated fund balance, opening (116,760) (14,523) 3,005 (2,788) (4,929)
Surplus allocated - - - - -

Accumulated fund balance, ending $ (199,109) $ (7,060) $ 44,807 $ 3,655 $ 57,043
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Schedule 1 - BC Housing Funded Programs

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Fund Balance by Program
For the year ended March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31 HOP HPP Houses CHB Best Western

Revenues
Subsidy $ 105,288 $ 194,607 $ 98,721 $ 206,910 $ 267,085
Other revenue - 250 - - -

105,288 194,857 98,721 206,910 267,085

Expenses
Building rent 10,659 103,113 - 220,867 -
Cablevision - - - - -
Electricity - - - - -
Heating fuel - - - - -
Water & sewer - - - - -
Meals - - - - 21,314
Miscellaneous hospitality (ESP only) 4,843 - - 361 500
Insurance premiums - - 6,669 - -
Waste removal - - - - -
Administration charge 5,062 1,713 - - 24,233
Internet - - - - -
Telephone 739 667 - 662 274
General administration 5,420 5,453 - - 10,444
Legal - - - - -
Furniture and equipment - 63,692 - - -
Laundry - - - - 25
Audit 600 600 - - 600
Exterior building maintenance - - - - -
General maintenance - - 37,642 - -
Grounds maintenance - - - - -
Interior building maintenance - - 20,791 - -
Pest control - - - - -
Service contracts - - - - -
Janitorial/cleaning supplies - - - - 185
Support labour and benefits 73,554 23,286 33,922 - 132,583
Education - operating - - - - -
Travel - operating (ESP & TH only) 379 38 - - 17
Other - operating - - - - -

101,256 198,562 99,024 221,890 190,175

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenses 4,032 (3,705) (303) (14,980) 76,910

Accumulated fund balance, opening (1,826) (53,987) (108,465) 80,557 32,974
Surplus allocated - - - - -

Accumulated fund balance, ending $ 2,206 $ (57,692) $ (108,768) $ 65,577 $ 109,884
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Turning Points Collaborative Society
Schedule 1 - BC Housing Funded Programs

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Fund Balance by Program
For the year ended March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31 Richter Bartley Super 8 The Crossings

Revenues $ - $ - $ - $ -
Subsidy 1,819,132 1,637,866 1,473,681 393,876
Other revenue - - 3,906 -
Start up costs - - - 2,648
Tenant rent revenue - - - 37,940

1,819,132 1,637,866 1,477,587 434,464

Expenses
Building rent - - - -
Cablevision - - - 12,005
Electricity - 20,084 - 18,191
Heating fuel - 27,116 - 3,505
Water & sewer - 2,384 - 10,772
Meals 254,285 185,304 144,140 35,910
Miscellaneous hospitality (ESP only) 17,208 17,659 5,816 4,965
Insurance premiums 7,522 7,731 6,394 791
Waste removal 9,753 6,877 93 3,427
Administration charge 85,741 75,025 105,684 17,264
Internet 7,293 4,325 2,905 1,270
Telephone 4,529 5,460 6,255 3,508
General administration 85,022 80,015 64,004 35,326
Legal - - - -
Furniture and equipment 2,751 1,024 2,258 5,196
Laundry 12,542 6,885 491 -
Audit 1,477 1,477 1,477 -
Exterior building maintenance 823 1,081 287 1,973
General maintenance 37,642 47,052 - 23,526
Grounds maintenance 2,683 4,787 2,210 -
Interior building maintenance 13,001 10,299 3,816 4,270
Pest control 1,283 1,601 - 615
Service contracts 258,202 301,069 58,221 21,076
Janitorial/cleaning supplies 32,923 19,632 12,711 10,812
Support labour and benefits 1,079,762 835,132 1,025,495 213,178
Education - operating - - 580 195
Travel - operating (ESP & TH only) 2,139 1,329 18,365 269
Other - operating - - - -

1,916,581 1,663,348 1,461,202 428,044

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses (97,449) (25,482) 16,385 6,420
Accumulated fund balance, opening (69,094) (148,726) (17,074) (602)
Surplus allocated - - - -

Accumulated fund balance, ending $ (166,543) $ (174,208) $ (689) $ 5,818
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2022 – 2025 Strategic Plan 
Year 2 Review

• Development of 2022 – 2025 Strategic Plan 
from December 2021 to June 2022.

• Developed by the Board, Executive and Leadership Teams

• 5 Goals

• 21 Objectives
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2022 – 2025 Strategic Plan 
Year 2 Review

Goals

• Support Community Housing Strategies

• Expand Community Education and Awareness

• Diversify Revenue Stream

• Growth Management

• Enhance Continuum of Care
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Support Community Housing Strategies 
Planning and coordinating housing initiatives - What 
have we achieved?

• Lions Seniors Housing, West Kelowna
• Completed March 2024

• Shelter Diversion Funding, Kelowna
• Completed February 2024

• Scattered Housing Funding, Vernon and Kelowna
• Completed April 2023
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Support Community Housing Strategies cont...

Increase capacity of other service providers - What have we 
achieved?

• Canadian Mental Health Association, Revelstoke
• Completed March 2024

• Westbank First Nations, NOW Canada, Partners in Resources, Salvation 
Army, Kelowna Gospel Mission, Canadian Mental 
Health Association, John Howard Society, Kelowna Women’s Shelter

• Completed February 2023

• Trail Association for Community Living
• Completed October 2023
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Support Community Housing Strategies cont...

Increase capacity of other service providers - What 
have we achieved? Cont...

• Vernon Upper Room Mission
• Completed Oct 2023

• Kelowna Shelter Diversion Hub

• Completed May 2023

FC Meeting - May 28, 2024 Page 316 of 375



To foster new and existing relationships and support systems 
for property owners and managers. - What have we 
achieved?

• Rent Supplement Outreach Team
• Completed Feb 2024

Support Community Housing Strategies cont...
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Expanding Environmental Programs - What have we achieved?

• Crockpot Cooking Classes
• Completed Feb 2024

• Supporting Local Farmers
• Completed January 2024

• Expand Cardboard Recycling
• Completed January 2024

• Redistribution of Food
• Completed August 2023

Support Community Housing Strategies cont...
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Expanding Environmental Programs - What have we 
achieved? Cont...

• Indigenous Flower Beds
• Completed Apr 2023

• Community Gardens
• Completed Apr 2023

Support Community Housing Strategies cont...
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Expand Education and Awareness
Promoting Organizational Values - What have we 
achieved?

• Government: Federal Government, Provincial Government, City 
Councils and Regional Directors

• Commerce: Greater Vernon Chamber of Commerce and Downtown 
Vernon Association

• Service Clubs: Kalamalka Rotary

• Educational Institutions: Regional Advisory Committee (Okanagan 
College)
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Expand Education and Awareness
Promoting Organizational Values - What have we 
achieved? Cont...

• Service Provisions:
o Provincial - Provincial Recovery Services Operators Committee, Service Providers 

Coalition 

o Vernon – IH/Shelter Providers Coalition, Hospital Discharge Team, Vernon Shelter 
Coordinated Access & Assessment, Social Planning Council of the North 
Okanagan, Violence Against Women in Relationships, Sexual Assault Services 
Committee, Not for Profit Housing Action Team, Camp Okanagan Outreach/Liason
Team, Emergency Food Action Network, North Okanagan Early Years Table

o Kelowna - IH/Shelter Providers Coalition, Hospital Discharge Team, Kelowna 
Shelter Coordinated Access & Assessment

FC Meeting - May 28, 2024 Page 321 of 375



Expand Community Education and Awareness
Providing Social Awareness - What have we achieved?

• Supporting Communities During Climate Emergencies
• Completed Jan 2024

• Many Brains One Heart Education Campaign
• Completed Jan 2024

• YouTube Educational Series
• Completed June 2023

• YOU ARE NOT STRONGER THAN TOXIC DRUGS
• Completed June 2023
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Expand Education and Awareness cont...
Targeted Advocacy - What have we achieved?

• Pleasant Vally Christian School
• Completed Feb 2024

• Trailside Neighbours
• Completed Feb 2024

• Homelessness Services of BC (Service Providers)
• Completed Feb 2024

• Vernon Gun and Gang Prevention (Youth)
• Completed Nov 2023
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Diversify Revenue Streams
Create Positive Revenue Streams - What have we achieved?

• Central Okanagan Foundation - Winter Top Up Fund
• Awarded Mar 2024

• Central Okanagan Foundation – Reaching Home
• Awarded Jan 2024

• BCH Affordable Housing (Affordable Housing)
• Awarded Jan 2024

• CMHA-BC Bed Based Treatment & Recovery Services Grant
• Awarded Dec 2023

• IH Cold Weather Necessities Grant
• Awarded Dec 2023
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Diversify Revenue Streams
Create Positive Revenue Streams - What have we achieved?

• City of Kelowna Affordable Housing
• Awarded Oct 2023

• Rona Foundation Capital Project
• Awarded July 2023

• Community Services Recovery Fund (CSRF) - Community Foundations of Canada
• Awarded May 2023

• 2023 Spring Smart & Caring Grants - Community Foundation of North Okanagan
• Awarded May 2023

• Central Okanagan Foundation Project Grant
• Awarded May 2023
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Growth Management
Recruitment - What have we achieved?

• Clinical Practice Experience (Focus College)
• Ongoing

• Job Fairs
• Ongoing

• Rural Northern Immigration Pilot (RNIP) program
• Ongoing
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Growth Management cont...
Retention - What have we achieved?

• Truth & Reconciliation
• Ongoing

• Cross Training 
• Ongoing

• Holistic Harm Reduction Training
• Completed Dec 2023
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Growth Management cont...
Streamline Processes - What have we achieved?

• Standardize Rental Subsidies Tracking Processes
• Completed June 2023
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Enhance Continuum of Care
Increase Residential Addiction Treatment Capacity - What 
have we achieved?

• CMHA-BC Bed Based Treatment & Recovery Services 
Grant

• Awarded Dec 2023
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Enhance Continuum of Care cont...
Train Staff In Program Delivery - What have we achieved?

• Scenario Based Training
• Completed September 2023

• Case Management Training
• Completed August 2023
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Enhance Continuum of Care cont...
Identify Service Gaps - What have we achieved?

• Community Living BC

• Awarded March 2024

• Regional Interior Health/Service Providers Collaboration

• Completed Dec 2023

• Hearing Clinic Collaboration

• Completed Aug 2023

• Vernon and Kelowna Hospital Discharge Committees

• Completed April 2023
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Enhance Continuum of Care cont...
Streamline Access to Services - What have we achieved?

• Shelter Hub
• Completed October 2023
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VERNON CONCERT BAND SOCIETY 

Annual General Meeting Minutes 

December 13, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. 

W.L. Seaton Secondary School, Vernon BC 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 Meeting chaired by , President.  called the meeting to order at 6:58 p.m.  

2. NOTICE OF MEETING 

  confirmed that the official notice of this AGM was provided on Tuesday, November 
14, 2023. 

3. CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM 

 A quorum of members was present (sign-in sheet attached).  

4. COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING 

  declared that this Annual General Meeting is regularly called and properly constituted 
for the transaction of business. 

5. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 Adopted unanimously, no vote taken.  

6. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

Moved by , seconded by : 

THAT the Minutes from the Vernon Concert Band Society Annual General Meeting held on 
December 7, 2022 be approved.  

CARRIED 

7. TREASURER’S REPORT 

  presented the 2023-2024 Operating and Capital Budgets and both year-
end (June 30, 2023) Financial Statements (attached).  noted we ended the 2022-2023 
fiscal year with $22.30 in profit that has been added into our Restricted Funds account for new 
instruments. She acknowledged $5829 in in-kind contributions by several members of the Band 
who are building our online music library. She noted that the Executive has approved the 
significant purchase of a new set of chimes that will arrive in the fall of 2024. 

Moved by , seconded by : 

THAT the 2023-2024 Budgets and two June 30, 2023 Financial Statements be accepted and that 
the oral Treasurer’s Report be taken as presented and accepted.  

CARRIED 

8. CONDUCTOR’S REPORT 
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  presented her Conductor’s Report (attached). 

Moved by , seconded by : 

THAT the Conductor’s Report be taken as presented and accepted. 

CARRIED 

9. PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

  presented her President’s Report (attached). 

Moved by , seconded by : 

THAT the President’s Report be taken as presented and accepted. 

CARRIED 

10. ELECTION OF 2023-2024 DIRECTORS 

  are retiring from the Executive at the end of 2023. 
The following individuals have agreed to be nominated as Directors of the Vernon Concert Band 
Society for a 1-year term commencing December 14, 2023:  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

The Chair asked for nominations from the floor three times. No further nominations were 
proposed. 

Moved by , seconded by : 

THAT the Director nominations be closed and these appointments be accepted. 

CARRIED 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

MOVED by , seconded by : 

THAT the December 13, 2023 Annual General Meeting be adjourned at 7:03 p.m. 

CARRIED 
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Recording Secretary:    

Signed: Date: December 13, 2023 

President:    

Signed: Date: 

 

Annexes:  

AGM 2023 Sign-in sheet 

President and Conductor AGM Reports  

2023-2024 Operating Budget 

2023-2024 Capital Budget 

Statement of Revenues and Expenses (Year End June 30, 2023)  

Balance Sheet (Year End June 30, 2023)  

In-Kind Contributions (Year End June 30 2023) 
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VPC AGM Minutes Tuesday Oct. 24, 2023

Location: 1516 Pub and Grill Okanagan Landing Road

17 Present:

Regrets:

1. Called to order 7:15pm

2. Approval of Agenda

Motioned by , 2nd by

3. Gratitudes -

Thanks to many who graciously offer their time and energy to make VPC the amazing club that
it is. A few special mentions: Rick for the huge fencing project, the boat storage crew who
worked to build more storage, members who helped Jordan with her activities, fall cleanup
crews (Rick’s list). Thanks for the donation by for storage container and big
thank you to for his work with concrete and getting a crane in to help move
container.

4. 2023 Treasurer’s Report –

Bank Balance:   $26,530 
 
Income Statement on One Drive 
Total Revenue: $44,379.91 
Includes: 

● memberships $17,235.00 
● boat storage $5,300.00 
● Kal Rotary Grant $10,614.00 (deadline to spend Feb 2024) 
● Independent Living Vernon $4040.91 

 
Expenses:   
 
Total Expenses: $28,560.02 
2023 Net Income: $15,819.89 

certified 2023 Income Statement (signatures on document)
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5. 2023 Program Reflections & Focus / Planning for 2024

Membership: 84 members - Glenn sent in Zone4 report: reported good season for paddling
with very few paddle plus Tuesday & Thursday sessions cancellations due to smoke

Membership fees will not be increased for upcoming year - 2024 season.

Drop in fees $20/session, max 6 times within a 2 month period. If they decide to join then this
gets applied / subtracted from membership fee.

Paddle Plus: Glenn proposed changing Paddle Plus sessions for 2024 to Mon-Wed-Friday as he
is no longer available Tues and Thurs. Membership discussion – prefer Tues & Thurs - Laurie will
confirm with Glenn re availability in April-June 2024 – proposal to continue 2022/2023
scheduling if he is available. Ideas of having him do a clinic on the nights he is available.

Motion made by Renee that board makes the decision re 2024 coaching schedule at Next board
meeting, 2nd by

2024 – Focus / set VPC goals to guide decision making re spending - coaching, or put money into
upgrading older boats or paddling clinics? What VPC has is a program how do we want to run
the program?

Adaptive Paddling: Jordan reported that 239 adaptive paddlers, plus 85-95 friends /
family / support workers turned up to experience adaptive paddling during 2023 season.

Participating organizations in Vernon include: Venture Training, Stroke Club, Independent Living
Vernon and the Hamlets.

Highlight was the purchase of ‘Trax Mats’ (2022 BC Parks Grant) which have been utilized by
other organizations in addition to VPC. Jordan will suggest a nominal rental fee for next year.
The mats are insured while being rented.

Jordan thanks IG Management, Kim D (concrete), Dave C (sea can), Rick T (fencing) and Renee
deT for her work on getting media out to events, as well as VPC members volunteering to
support the adaptive paddling program.

Recreational Paddle: Janis reported there was a core group of folks who came out until some
were injured. She will be coordinator for next year. Big thank to Marcus, for coming out and
steering and coaching for most of July and August. Thanks to Larry and Mike F for their steering
support. Recreation folks were more than receptive to all their efforts.

6. 2023 Compound Updates - Bob

Currently have 53 boats that are being stored ($5,300.00 income). Plans include adding racks to
middle storage unit to accommodate more boats. Many requests for lower levels – perhaps
accommodate in space behind current storage unit
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Safety and care: There is a list of boats that need repair; this is a work in progress. Bob
suggested maybe selling old tandem boats and replacing them.

Upgrades: Completed projects include installation of chain link fencing in back area, wooden
fence repaired & stained, concrete poured and sea can installed.

7. FILM FESTIVAL: Deb will continue to chair for 2024 film festival which is confirmed
with both Towne Cinema and Rapid Media for Thursday April 18, 2024.

Tickets $20.00 can be purchased at Bean Scene and Ratio and the Towne as well as on line.
Candace will be approached to set on line sales for film festival. There is an online viewing
platform that folks can pay and go, look at last year’s films. (Virtual Films) We get a portion of
this fee. Deb would like to promote this more this year.

Bob and Deb – look for YouTube video of outrigger paddling to show at Film Festival.

Sponsors will be approached in January. There will be less door prizes. Last year a
complimentary paddle session was offered to Kal Tire and had to be carried for the coming
paddling season as a date couldn’t be set for summer of 2023.

8. GRANTS

CORA GRANT: - Larry reported there are 4 different grants from CORA. These include: 1. Repair
and Maintenance which is awarded every 2 years $1000.00, 2. Travel grant to pay for
transportation to out of area races i.e. Penticton, gas for trailer, 3. Clinic Grant to hire a coach to
give a clinic and 4. Coaching grant so that a coach can take coaching courses.

BC Community Gaming Grant: Laurie – all Sports sectors will know by Oct. 31, this grant
if received will cover coaching and insurance fees.

Independent Living Vernon received $4040.91 in 2023 - annual grant

North OK Community Grant: Jordan reported this is an involved application, and will cover
capital and operational expenses. She will tackle applying for this grant this year.

City of Vernon Grant: 2023 application denied. Will re-submit for 2024 (deadline April 30/24)

KAL ROTATRY: Sonja and Jordan were present for a photo opportunity with Kal Rotary for their
generous donation as well as they was pleased with the donations that will be made for their
Dream Auction. Jordan was told by Kal Rotary if she has a project in mind they would be happy
to hear from her to apply for a grant again.

TO DO: Signage and website so that grants are acknowledged. Laurie will give Candace info to
put on web site. Signage needs to be designed (Grant monies?)

9. 2023 Race Results and 2024 Race Planning:

2023 Race results are posted on web site.
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Fresh Water Challenge Race for August 2023 was cancelled due to smoke

June 22 2024 proposed for Vernon Freshwater Challenge. Bob will contact CORA to put on
website. Other races that can be attended are Penticton, the Gorge, and Kelowna. A survey was
sent to the membership also about attending bigger races ie. Hawaii, California. Marcus is
following up on survey.

10. Upcoming fund raiser Dance - Laurie

Nov. 25 date doesn’t work. Ideas put out to members at AGM, a date of Feb. 10 is good for the
band and the Elks Club. Or put it off to the fall.

MOTION carried - dance Feb 10 by Judy and 2nd by Wendy. Judy and Wendy are organizing
committee

Band and venue will be contacted to confirm & sign contract - Laurie will do.

11. DIRECTORS ELECTION:

As per VPC bylaws the Board is made up of no more than 7 members, directors are elected on
an annual basis, all directors have put forward to remain on the board.

Call for nominations to join/transition to the board for 2023-2024 no takers

Motion was made to approve the election of the Directors by Renee and 2nd by Deb all
in favor.

.

Non board positons (grant writing committee, IT/website committee, Race Selection
Committee) have been put forward to help with growth of the VPC. Monthly board meeting
dates are sent out so all club members are informed & encouraged to attend. Mike Fullam when
available will be stepping in and doing the minutes. Patty will continue doing other secretarial
duties.

12. MOTION TO ADJOURN Meeting at 8:30 by Wendy 2nd by Kimm

Minutes submitted by
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Vernon Paddling Centre Society (VPC)  

Income Statement  

For the Year Ended Dec 31, 2023

Revenues 2023

Membership Dues   17,385$   

Boat Storage Rental Income 5,300        

Drop In Fees-(VPC=$409; Adaptive=$1885) 2,364        

Film Festival-Fundraiser 2,975        

Film Festival-Sponsorship 2,425        

F.W. Race donation 160            

Contribution of donated asset 5,000        

Grants

Restricted-Kalamalka Rotary Club 10,614      

Restricted-BC Gaming Grant (2023 for 2024 coaching) 4,700        

Unrestricted Independent Living (Adaptive) 4,041        

Restricted Independent Living 245            

Canadian Paraplegic Association 500            

CORA (Boat repairs) 1,000        

CORA (Travel) 156            

Total Revenues 56,865$ 

Expenses

Bank Charges 48$            

Kal Rotary Adaptive Program Grant expenditures 1,715        

Film Festival 1,698        

CORA Membership 150            

Coaching VPC 3,150        

Coaching Adaptive 5,025        

Insurance (VPC & Adaptive) 5,251        

Boat repairs 1,155        

General Supplies  2,111        

Awards-recognition of members 1,180        

Adaptive Program Expenses 1,927        

Amortization Expense 21,011      

 

Total Expenses 44,421$ 

Net Income  12,444$ 
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Vernon Paddling Centre Society  

Balance Sheet Statement  

As at December 31, 2023  

2023

Current Assets

Gaming Bank Account ($4,700 Restricted) 4,724$        

Operating Bank Account  ($1,866 Restricted) 26,851        

Member Share Accounts 70                 

Prepaid Expense 729              

Accounts Receivable 1,035           

33,409        

Long-Term Assets

 Capital Assets (Note 1 )

Boats  45,472        

Buildings 12,282        

Trailers -                    

Equipment 11,724        

69,478        

Total Assets 102,887$ 

Current  Liabilities

Accounts Payable 1,180$        

Equity
Retained Earnings-Previous Year 89,263        

   

Net Income 12,444        

Total Liabilities & Equity  102,887$ 

Note 1 See details in Notes 1, 2 and  3 in the Notes to the Financial Statements.
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Vernon Paddling Centre Society  

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Description of Organization

Vernon Paddling Centre Society (VPC) is a not-for-profit organization.

devoted to the promotion of safe and skillful paddling.

VPC was incorporated as a Society on July 30, 1993.

We provide affordable, recreational paddling, with no need to own or store a boat.

Boat storage is available to members at a cost.

VPC is a club of independent paddlers who enjoy outrigger canoeing and other paddling sports.

VPC's mission is to promote an inclusive paddling community, safety and 

paddling to the community at large.  We are always looking for new members.

Vernon Adaptive Paddling Program

VPC has teamed up with Access Revolution to  promote inclusive access to outdoor recreation for people 

of all abilities by providing adaptive coaching, equipment, opportunities, education and resources.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

  VPC has adopted an accrual basis of accounting effective January 1, 2022.

VPC has a General Operating/Chequing Account and a BC Community Gaming Grant-Restricted Fund Account.  

Revenue recognition

Membership fees are recognized in the fiscal year in which they are received.

Grants and Sponsorships are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in which they are received.

Donations are recorded as revenue in in the fiscal year in which they are received.

Donations of assets are recorded at fair market value on the date of their donation.

The value of donated services are not recognized in these statements.

2. Capital Assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes any directly attributable costs of preparing the asset

for its intended use, such as shipping costs.

Donated assets are reported at fair market value when received by VPC.

Capitalized assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Type % Useful Life

Boats 15% 6-7 years

Buildings 10% 10 years

Trailers 30% 3-4 years

Equipment 20% 5 years
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

2. Capital Assets continued

Cost   Cost Accumulated Value Value

Beginning of Year Additions Disposals End of Year Amortization 2023 2022

Boats 153,591$              2,739$            -$           156,330$         110,858$         45,472$       56,401$     

Buildings 24,329$                9,294$            -$           33,623$            21,341$            12,282$       4,883$       

Trailers 15,500$                -$                -$           15,500$            15,500$            -$              -$            

Equipment 29,274$                4,920$            -$           34,194$            22,470$            11,724$       12,251$     

222,694$              16,953$          -$           239,647$         170,169$         69,478$       73,535$     

During 2023, Additions include:

 - two Adaptive Paddleboards with a combined cost of $2,739;

 - fencing with a cost of $4,294;

 - Trax mats with a cost of $4,920.

And, VPC capitalized a donated asset, a sea container, with a fair market value of $5,000.

 

3. Capital Disclosures

Restricted Funds are monitored to ensure spending is in accordance with the terms 

and conditions of the Grants.

In the event of an over expenditure, VPC funds the costs from other resources

in its operating account.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS AND REGISTERED OFFICE
BC Society • Societies Act

T.K. SPARKS

CERTIFIED COPY
Of a document filed with the
Province of British Columbia

Registrar of Companies

NAME OF SOCIETY: VERNON PADDLING CENTRE SOCIETY

Incorporation Number: S0030871

Business Number: 84717 6088 BC0001

Filed Date and Time: October 27, 2023 08:16 AM Pacific Time

REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS INFORMATION

915 CAVALIER DR
VERNON BC V1T 9M6

Delivery Address: Mailing Address:

915 CAVALIER DR
VERNON BC V1T 9M6

DIRECTOR INFORMATION

Last Name, First Name Middle Name:

Delivery Address:

Last Name, First Name Middle Name:

Delivery Address:

Last Name, First Name Middle Name:

Delivery Address:

Last Name, First Name Middle Name:

Delivery Address:

BC Registries and Online Services

Incorporation Number S0030871 www.gov.bc.ca/Societies 1 2Page of

FC Meeting - May 28, 2024 Page 367 of 375



STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS AND REGISTERED OFFICE
BC Society • Societies Act

Last Name, First Name Middle Name:

Delivery Address:

Last Name, First Name Middle Name:

Delivery Address:

Last Name, First Name Middle Name:

Delivery Address:

BC Registries and Online Services

Incorporation Number S0030871 www.gov.bc.ca/Societies 2 2Page of

FC Meeting - May 28, 2024 Page 368 of 375



FC Meeting - May 28, 2024 Page 369 of 375



FC Meeting - May 28, 2024 Page 370 of 375



FC Meeting - May 28, 2024 Page 371 of 375



FC Meeting - May 28, 2024 Page 372 of 375



FC Meeting - May 28, 2024 Page 373 of 375



FC Meeting - May 28, 2024 Page 374 of 375



FC Meeting - May 28, 2024 Page 375 of 375


	Agenda - May 28, 2024
	Minutes - April 24, 2024
	Council Discretionary Grant - Recipient Reporting
	April 2024 Intake - Application Overview
	Council Discretionary Grant Policy
	Archway Society for Domestic Peace
	Caetani Cultural Centre Society
	Family Resource Centre for North Okanagan
	Kalamalka Starfish Society
	North Okanagan Pipes & Drums
	North Okanagan Valley Gleaners Society
	North Okanagan Valley Orchestra Society
	Okanagan Screen Arts Society
	School District No. 22
	The Good Food Box Society of the North Okanagan
	Turning Points Collaboative Society
	Vernon Community Band Society
	Vernon Kokanee Swim Club
	Vernon Paddling Cenre Society
	WL Seaton Secondary "Sonics" Football



